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Independent Auditor’s i{ep ort

To the Members of Indian Cable Net Company Limited
Repott on the Audit of the Standaione Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Indian Cable Net Company
Lirited (‘the Company’}, which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the Statement of Profit
and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except
for the effects of the matter descrbed in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
prnciples generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS’) specified undet
section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2022, its profit including
other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Company’s Revenue, from Operations’ include broadcasters” share in subscription income from pay
channels, which has correspondingly been presented as an expense which is not in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS-115, ‘Revenue from contract with customers’. Flad the Management disclosed the
same on net basis, the ‘Revenue from Operations’ and the ‘Pay Channel, carriage sharing and related cost’
each would have been lower by 19,452 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March 2022 and the profit would
have remained the same as currently reported.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards ate further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accouatants of India (TCATL)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professiomil judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current petiod. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

In addition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matter

How our audit addtessed the key audit matter

Provisioning for Expected Credit Loss
("ECL")

Trade receivables comprise a significant
pottion of the current financial assets of
the Company. As at March 31, 2022 trade
receivables aggregate I 4049 Lakhs (net of
provision for expected credit losses of ¥
275 Lakhs).

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the
Company applies expected credit loss
(ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for
financial assets.

Since the Company has revenue streams
which are dissimilar, the management has
identified different classes of trade
receivables basis the customer profile and
nature of service provided or item sold.
The management regularly assesses each
class of trade receivables for recoverability.
Provision for ECL is created by the
management considering the recovery
trends noted for the respective class,
adjusted for forward looking estimates.
Additional provision is created for the
receivables  specifically  identified as
doubtful or non-recoverable.

Estimation of the rates at which provision
for ECL is to be created for each revenue
stream, involve significant degree of -
judgment and estimate and is therefore
considered a key audit matter.

We have performed the following procedures for
assessment of sufficiency of the provisioning for ECL:

*  Obtained the aging of trade receivables and
discussed the key receivable balances, considering
if any correspondence is available to establish the
management’s assessment of recoverability of such
dues.

*  Analysis of the methodology used to determine the
provision amount for the current year.

»  Assessing key ratios which include collection
periods and days outstanding.

o  Tested subsequent settlement of trade receivables
after the balance sheet date on a2 sample basis,

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions
The Company has material uncertain tax
positions including matters under dispute
which involves significant judgment to
determine the possible outcome of these
disputes.

We obtained details of completed tax assessments and
demands for the year ended March 31, 2022 from
management. We involved our internal experts to challenge
the management’s underlying assumptions in estimating the
tax provision and the possible outcome of the disputes.
Our internal experts also considered legal precedence and
other rulings in evaluating management’s position on these
uncertain tax positions. Additionally, we considered the
effect of new information in respect of uncertain tax
positions as at April 1, 2021 to evaluate whether any change
was required to management’s position on these

uncertainties.
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

7. The Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements
and dur auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. Tf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of
this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

8. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to
the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

9. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, ot has no realistic alternative but to do so. ‘

10. Those Board of Ditectors are also responsible for oversecing the Company’s financial repotting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Andit of the Standalone Financial Statements

11. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 2 whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or etror and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on

the basis of these financial statements.

12, As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
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detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for explaining our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the approptiateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events ot
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going conceta.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the
standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our wotk; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstaterents in the standalone financial statements

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

14, We also provide those chatged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other ‘
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

15. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these mattets in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. As requited by section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to its
directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the

Act.
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17. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11} of the Act, we give in the Annexure I statement on the
matters specified in clauses 3 and 4 of the Order.

18. Further to our comments in Annexure L, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion
section, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
wete necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b) Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our
opinion, propes books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account,

d) Except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, in our
opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act;

¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Ditectors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2022from being appointed
as a director in tertns of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) We have also audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the
Company as on 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements
of the Company for the year ended on that date and our report as per Annexure-II expresses a
modified opinion.

) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company in its standalone financial statements, has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2022;

i, The Company did not have any long-term contracts including detivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2022;

i,  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2022;

iv)* (a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds ot share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
cntities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company “Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, secutity or the like on behalf of the Ultimate

Beneficiaries;
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(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
(which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been received by the
Company from any petson or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (i) and (if) of Rule 11(€), as provided under (a) and (b)
above, contain any material misstatement.

v)  The company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year.

For A.K. Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 329475E

e

(A.K. Bhalotia)
Proprietor
Membership No.: 065860
UDIN: 22065860AJTBXT4153

Place: Kolkata -
Date : 27 May 2022
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Annexure - I to the Independent Auditor’s Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, we report that:

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of andit, we state that:

()  In tespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

() (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and relevant
details of right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

() The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment,
Investment Property and right of-use assets so as to cover all assets in 2 phased manner over a
period of three years, which, in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company
and the nature of its assets, other than set top boxes, which are in possession of customers/third
parties and distribution equipment comprising ovethead and underground cables and other
equipment since the physical verification of such items of Propesty, Plant and Equipment is not
feasible owing to the nature and location of these assets. Pursuant to the program, certain
Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and right of use assets were physically
verified by the management during the year. According to the information and explanations given
to us, the existence of set top boxes is verified on the basis of the ‘active user’ status in the system.
No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification. However, ‘set top boxes lying with
the distributors/cable operators, and ‘distribution equipment comprising overhead and
underground cables’ as aforementioned have not been physically verified by the management
during the year as explained above and we are, therefore, unable to comment on the discrepancies,
if any, which could have arisen on verification thereof.

(@) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (including investment properties) held by the
Company (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are
duly executed in Favour of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the name of
the Company, except for the following properties, {for which the Company's management is in the

rocess of getting the registeation done in the name of the Company} :

G Whether promoter Reason for not
Description f0%% | Held in StIer promote ; being held in
carrying director or their Period held
of property name of ] name of
value relative or employee
company
Palas

- 7033 In the process
Building Lakhs %'lg_lt:rfc No 27/03/2018 of registration.

(@) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Investment
property and right-of-use assets) and intangible assets during the year.

(6 No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as at
Match 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition)
Act, 1988 {as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(i}{e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

| (i) (1) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during
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the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory were
noticed and the same have been properly dealt with in the books of account,

{b) The Company has a working capital limit in excess of ¥ 5 Crore sanctioned by banks based on the
security of current assets. The quarterly returns/statements, in respect of the working capital limits
have been filed by the Company with such banks and such returns/statements are in agreement
with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were subject to audit.

The Company has made investments in, and granted unsecured loans and advances in the nature
of loans to companies, during the yeat, in respect of which:

(2} 'The Company has provided loans and advances in the nature of loans to 2 companies during the
ear. The details of the same ate given below ;

Particulars Loans (X Lakhs) Advances in the nature of
loan{XLakhs)
Aggregate Amount during the
year
- Subsidiary 1800 200
- Others (Holding Co.) 1300 -
Balance outstanding as at
Balance Sheet date
- Subsidiary 1889 193
- Others (Holding Co.) 1125 - -

In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of loans and
advances in the nature of loans are prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s intetest.

®)

In respect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments of principal amounts and receipts of interest are

generally been regular as per stipulation.

©

In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as
at the balance sheet date.

@

() The company has granted loan which had fallen dve during the year and such loan was extended
during the year. The details of the same has been given below :
Name of the Party Aggregate amount of over dues | Percentage of the aggregate of
of existing loans extended total loans granted during the

(T Lakhs) year
Variety Entertainment Private 4812 155.22%
Limited
() The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on

demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(iif}{f) is not applicable.

The Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
in respect of loans granted, investments made and guarantees and securities provided, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits. Hence,
reporting under clause 3(v} of the Order is not applicable.
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(vi)  To the best of our knowledge and as explained, the Central Government has prescribed maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the products and
services of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the
company in this connection and are of the opinion that the prima facie the records have been
maintained. We have not however made a detailed examination of the records with the view to
determine whether they are accurate and complete.

(vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(2} In our opinion, the Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
including Goods and Services tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales
Tax, Service Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise, Value Added Tax, Cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.
There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Setvice tax, Provident Fuad,
Employees® State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Setvice Tax, duty of Custom, duty of Excise,
Value Added Tax, Cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2022 for 2
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
(b) Details of statutory dues refetred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on
March 31, 2022 on account of disputes are given below:
Name of Nature of Amount Amount paid . Period to Forum where
the statute dues under Protest which the dispute is
(X In Lakhs) (¥ InLakhs) | amount relates pending
Finance Service tax . 86.54 6.49 FY.2014-15 | Commissioner
Act,1994 of CGST &
CX,
Kolkata(Appeal
-1)
Finance Service tax 57.58 plus 5.09 F.Y.2012-13 to | Appeal yet to
Act,1994 Interest K.Y, 2016-17 be filed
Finance Service tax "24.79 plus 1.69 F.Y. 2016-17 to | Commissioner
Act,1994 Interest EY. 2017-18 of CGST &
CX,
Kolkata(Appeal
1)
West VAT 407.89 - F.Y. 2015-16 West Bengal
Bengal Taxation
VAT Act Tribunal
CST Act CST 7.75 - F.Y.2015-16 | Calcutta High
Court
The W.B. | Entry Tax and 401.15 36.94 F.Y. 2012-2013 | Calcutta High
Tax on Interest to 2017-18 Court
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Entry of
Goods into
Local Area
Act,2012
Entertainm | Entertainment 87.21 - Till May 2015 | Allahabad High
ent Tax tax Court
Jharkhand Jharkhand 55.99 50.67 F.Y.2015-16 | Commissioner
VAT Act VAT of Commercial
Taxes, Ranchi,
Jharkhand
Income Income Tax 689.77 25533 A Y. 2016-17 National
Tax Act, to Faceless
1961
2018-19 Appeal Centre
Customs Custom Duty 6670.79 20.00 FY.2015-16 to Additional
Act, 1962 2017-18 Disector
General
(Adjudication),
Directorate of
Revenue
Intelligence,
Delhi / High
Court, Delhi
(viii)  There were no transactions rclating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961).
(nc) (2) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in

repayment of loans or other borrowings ot in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representadon received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that
the Company has not been declared a wiliful defaulter by any bank or financial institution ot
other lender.

{9 In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by
way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short-
term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by the
Company.

(¢) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not
taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries.
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(f} The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting on clause 3(x)(f) of
the Otzder is not applicable.

() The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x}(a) of the
Ozder is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence reporting under clause
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

() No fraud by or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year and hence
reporting under clavse 3(xi)(a} of the Otder is not applicable.

(b) The company is not required to file report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the
Companies Act in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi)(b) of the
Otder is not applicable.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xi)(c) of the Otder is not
applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xif) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013
with tespect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related party
transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable

accounting standards.

»

(2) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(b} Internal Audit for the period under audit is yet to be carried out by the Internal Auditors of the
company. Accordingly, we were unable to consider such Report.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
Ditectors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192 of the
Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

(b) In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016} and accordingly reporting under clause
.&\otla £
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3(xvi)(d) of the Ogder is not applicable.

(zvi)  The Company has not incurred cash losses dusing the financial year covered by our audit and the
immediately preceding financial year.

{xviil) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

{(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as
to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to
the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities
falling due within a petiod of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the
Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) There ate no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) on other than
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act
in compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of
ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Special account in compliance with the provision of
section 135(6) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not
applicable for the year.

For A.K.Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 329475E

Nd

(A.K. Bhalotiz)

Proprietor
Membership No.: 065860
UDIN : 22065860AJTBXT4153

Place: Kolkata
Date : 27 May 2022
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Annexure I

Independent Auditor’s teport on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of
Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Indian Cable Net
Company Limited (“the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have
audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting (IFCoFR) of the company as of

that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining intetnal
financial controls based on Internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conttols over Financial Repotting (“the Guidance Note”)
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the ordedy and efficient conduct of the
Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and etrors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
requited under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's IFCoFR based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Charteted Accountants of India (‘ICAT’) prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the
extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Repotting (‘the Guidance Note’} issued by the ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note requite that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were
established and maintained and if such conttols operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Out audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
IFCOFR and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an
understanding of IFCoFR, assessing the tisk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed
tisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5 We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s IFCoFR.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR
include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of
the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessaty to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, ot disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future
periods are subject to the tisk that the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, o that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

8. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the
following material weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as at 31 March

2022;

The Company’s internal financial controls over preparation of financial statements with
respect to presentation and disclosure of ‘Revenue from operations” in accordance with the
requirement of Ind AS 115 Revenue from contracts with customers’, wete not operating
effectively which has resulted in a material misstatement in the amounts recognised as
Revenue from operations’ and ‘Cartiage sharing, pay channel and related costs’ including the
celevant disclosures in the standalone financial statements, while there is no impact on the net
profit for the year ended 31 March 2022.

9. A ‘matetial weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
mmaterial misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be
prevented or detected on a timely basis.

10. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal financial
controls with  reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued
by the ICAI and except for the effects of the material weakness described above on the
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achievement of the objectives of the control criteria, the Company’s internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 31 March 2022.

11. We have considered the material weakness identified and reported above in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company as at and for the yeat ended 31 March 2022, and the material
weakness has affected our opinion on the standalone financial statements of the Company and
we have issued a qualified opinion on the standalone financial statements

For A. K, Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 329475E

Wp’"

(A. K. Bhalotia)

Proprietor
Membetship No.: 065860
UDIN : 22065860A] TBXT4153

Place: Kolkata
Date : 27 May, 2022



INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022 - T in Laklhs
Notes Mar 31,2022 Mar 31, 2021
A, Assets
1. Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipmen: 4 25,041 29,432
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 3,932 2,594
(¢) Investment Property 5 7,009 6,498
{d) Goodwill 6 2,107 2,107
{e) Other Intangible Assets 6 3,485 5,093
{[) Financial Assets
(i) Investiments 7 805 1,648
(ii) Loans 8 7,930 4,812
(iii) Other Financial Asseis 9 240 228
{g) Other Non-current Assets 10 542 702
Sub-total of Non-current Assets 51,091 53,114
2, Current Assets :
(a) Inventories 11 119 102
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 12 1,149 -
(ii) Trade Receivables 13 4,049 3,869
(iif} Cash and Cash Equivalents 14 994 4,353
(iv) Bank Balances other (i) above Is - 3
(v) Other Financial Assets 16 793 708
(c) Current Tax Assets 17 1,282 1,141
(d) Other Current Assets 18 323 554
{Sub-total of Current Asscts 8,709 10,730
Totnl assets .- 59,800 63,843
B. Equity and Liabilities
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 19 8,640 8,648
(b) Other Equity 20 35,089 34,428
Sub-total - Eguity 44,629 43,069
Linbilitics
1. Non-current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 21 - 3,500
(ia) Lease Liability 19 24
(i) Other Financial Liabilities 22 753 586
(b) Provisions 23 733 412
(c) Deferred Tax Liability (net) 24 76 243
{d) Other Non-current Liabilities 25 199 179
Sub-total - Non-current Liabilities 1,782 4,944
2, Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 26 4,853 4,787
{ia) Lease Liability 50 46
(ii}) Trade Payables 27
outstanding dues of creditors for micro enterprises 9 10
and small enterprises .
outstanding dues of creditors- others 6,079 7,300
(iii} Other Financial Liabilitics 28 120 1,416
(b) Other Current Liabilities 29 2,242 2241
(c) Provisions 30 35 29
Sub-total of Current Liabilities 13,388 15,830
Total Equity and Liabilities 59,800 63,843
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred t in our report of even date.
—

For A K. Bhaletia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. - 329475E)

AKX Bhalotia
Proprietor
Membership No.-065860

Place - Kolkata
Daic - 27.05.2022

For Indian Cable fNet Co Ltd

92132WEB1995PL
Sirtndra un@ Suresh Kumar Sethiya

Whole Time Director "
DIN-00349098

Lax1 TTa Atul
Company Secretary



INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED |
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31:, 202: Tin Lakhs
Notes Mar 31,2022 -  March 31,2021
Revenue |
Revenue from Operations 31 40,456 40,906
Other Income 32 1,548 1,778
Total Income 42,004 42,684
|
|
Expenses :
Cost of Materials Consumed 33 , 140 53
Cost/Purchase of Goods Sold 34 } 171 948
Pay Channel and related costs 35 24,354 - 24,705
Employee Benefits Expense 36 2,094 1,959
Finance Costs 37 ‘ 540 1,008
Depreciation and Ameortisation Expenses 38 7,015 7,898
Other Expenses 39 5,485 5,111
Total Expenses ) 39,799 41,682
Profit /(Loss} before exceptional items 2,205 ' 1,002
Exceptional Items |- -
Profit /(Loss) before tax 2,205 1,002
Tax Expenses 668 25
(a) Current Tax !
For Current Year 817 469
For Earlier Year 17 103
(b) Deferred Tax : (166) (547)
Profit /(Loss) for the year 1,537 977
|
Other Comprehensive Income 40 ; 23 18
|
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 1,560 995
Earning Per Share (¥ ) 41 ‘
Basic 1.78 1.13
Diluted . ;1.78 1.13
Summary of significant accounting policies 3 !
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date

For A.K. Bhalotia & Co. 1
Chartered Accountants For Indian Cable Net Co Litd

(Firm Registration No. - 329475E) (U9213’.:’WB1995PLC 54)

AK Bhalotia Syfrendra Kymar Agarwala  Suresh Kumar Sethiya
Proprietor hele Time Director Whote Time Director

IN-G0569816 [ DIN-00349098

Laxmdn )g)rrz%' Atul ar Singh

Company Secretary CF.O
|

Membership No.-065860

Place - Kolkata
Date - 27.05.2022




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Cash Flow Statement for year ended 31* March 2022
T in Lakhs
PARTICULARS 31" March 2022 31" March 2021
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
Net Profit before tax 2,205 1,002
Adjustment for -
Depreciation/Amortisation 7,015 7,598
Loss on sale/disposal/decapitalisation of Fixed Assets 606 13
Loss /(Profit} on sale of Investiments (182) -
Bad Debts written off (Net of Provisions) - ]
Pravision for Retirement Benefit and Compensated 17 33
absences
Provision for 5TBs Chumn 340 21
Liability/Provision no longer required written back (Net) {238) (767)
Ungealised loss (gain) on Investment (24} 214
Provision for doubtful Debts & Advances 112 420
Unzealised Foreign Exchange Gain/{Loss) {1} 7
Interest Paid & Borrowing cost 544 1,008
Interest on Fixed Deposit/ 1T Refund / Others {671} (510)
Operating profit before working capital changes 9,721 9,340
Change in working capital
Increasei{Decrease) in Trade payables (1,042) (1,347)
Increase/{Decrease) in other current liabilities 1 117
Increase/{Decrease) in other non current liabilities (146) (508)
IncreaseX{Decrease) in other current financial liabilities 111 (1,300)
Inerensef{Decrease) in ather non current financial liabilities 163 (832)
Decrease/{Increase) in Trade receivable (23n 2,887
Decrease/{Increase) in Inveniories (16) (25)
Decrense/{Increase) in Other Cursent Financial Assets (16) (297)
Decrease/{Increase) in other current assets 231 511
Decrease/{Increase) in ofher non- current assets 214 186
Cash Generation from Operating Activities before exceptional item 8,988 8,730
Exceptional [tem B
Cash Generation from Operating Activitics nfter exceptional item 8,988 8,730
Income Tax Paid (including TDS) (317) (202)
Net Cash Generation from operating Activities 8,171 8,528
B. Cashflow From Investing Activities:
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment/Intangible
Assets [ICWIP/Tnvestmen Property/Capital Advance (4:877) (2,022)
Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 16 1,150
Investment in Mutual Funds (3,604) -
Investment in Subsidiaries [4))] -
Proceeds from sale of Equity Instruments ‘ 1,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of Mutual Fund 2,505 -
Loan Given to Holding Company (1,300) -
Loan Repaid by Holding Company 115 -
Loan Given 1o Subsidiary/Fellow Subsidiary Company {1,993) -
Interest on Fixed Deposit/ IT Refund / Others 589 510
Investiment'Redemption in FD (4,809) {4,773)
Net Cash Generation from Investing Activities {12,300) (5,135)
C- Cashiflow From Financing Activities:
Interest Paid (540) (1,008)
Borrowings Taken / (Repayment) 1,378 (5,381)
Principal repayment of Lease Liabilitics (67) (52)
Net Cash Generation from Financing Activities 77 (10,441)
Net Increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (3,358) {7,048)
Cash & Caosh Equivalent at the beginning of the year 4,353 11,401
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year 594 4,353
Cash & Cash Equivalent include As on 31" Mar 2022/ As on 31" Mar 2021
Cash Balance 470 1,183
Bank Balance 525 360
Deposits - Free Maturity within 3 months - 2,810
Cash & Cash Equivalent Reported 994 4,353
Notes: Previous years' figures are regrouped wherever necessary.
Cash Flow Statement referred in our report of even date,
For A.K, Bhalotia & Co. For Indian Cable Net Co Ltd
Chartered Accountants U92132WDB1995PLCO7575
{Firm Registration No. - 329475E)
. /
AK Bhalotia Agarw';la Suresh Kumar Sethiya
Proprictor i Whole Time Direclor
Membership No.- 065860 DIN-00349098

Laxmah SihghW#fira Atul
Company Secretary

Place - Kolkata
Date - 27.05.2022




Indian Cable Net Company Limited

Statement of Change in Equity for the vear ended 3i* March 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

T in Lakhs
Changes In equity
Balance at 1at April'2021 share capital Balance at 31st
during the eurrent |March 2022
year
8,640 - 8,640
T in Lakhs
Changes in equity
Balance at 1st April'2020 share capital Balance at 31st
during the current |March 2021
year
8,640 - i 8,640
B. Other Equity
T in Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus Total
Capitzl Rescrve Securitics Retained-
Premium Earnings
Balance at 1st Aprii'2021 - ) 18,968 15461 | 34,429
Profit for the year - - 1,537 1,537
Other Comprehensive Income for the - - 23 23
year
Total Comprehensive Income for the . - - 1,559 1,559
current year
Dividends - - - -
Transfer to retained eamnings - - . -
Any other change (to be specified) - : - - -
Balanee at 315t March 2022 - 18,968 17,021 35,989
Reserves and Surplus Totsl
Capital Reserve Securitics Retained
Premium Earnings
- 18,968 14,466 33,434
Balance at Ist April’2020
Profit for the year - - 977 97
Other Comprehensive [ncome for the - - 18 18
year
Total Comprehensive Income for the . - 995 995
current year
Dividends - - ) - -
‘Transfer to retained eamings - - - B
Any other change {to be specified) - - - -
- 18,968 15,461 34,429
Balance at 31st March 2021

Statement in change in Equity referred in our report of even date.

For A.K. Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants For Indian Cable Net Co Lid

(Firm Registration No. - 329473E) WB1995PLCO7575

A X Bhalotia Sujelidra Kikhar Agarwala Suresh Kumar Sethiya
ole Time Director Wheole Time Disector

Proprietor
Membership No.-065860 DIN-00569816 DIN-00349098
b
Place - Kolkata Laxmafl Si Hira
Cotmpany Secretary

Date - 27.05.2022




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31% March 2022 -

1  Corporate information

Indian Cable Net Co. Ltd. ( 'the company' or ICNCL") was incorporated on 6th December, 1995 and is engaged in the business
of distribution of television channels through digital cable distribution network, and other related services.

ICNCL is a Subsidiary of Siti Networks Ltd with its registered office in Kolkata, West Bengal.

2 Basis of preparation
{a) Statement of Compliance

The financial statemeats have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Jnd AS ) as prescribed by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act’} read with relevant rules of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 read with companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules as amended from time to time.

(b) Basis of Measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on histerical cost basis, except for following :
a) Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at Fair value/ Amortised cost;
b) Non-current assets held for sale — mensured at the lower of the carrying amounts and fair value less cost to sell;
¢) Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value; '

(c¢) Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statemenis have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional currency. All
financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirements of Schédule III, unless
otherwise stated.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year, unless otherwise
mentioned, and arc explained below-

3  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Use of estimates and Critical accounting judgements

®

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assels and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities on the date of the financial staterients and reported amounts of Income and Expenses during the period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current or future periods.
The most significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policics below. Critical accounting judgments and
the key sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying the Company’s accounting policies arise in relation to the following and
also in relation to other accounting policies as stated elsewhere:

Property, Plant & Equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are stated in the
balance sheet at cost/deemed cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Leasehold Land is
amortised over the period of useful life. Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses.

(ii) Intangible Asset

Netwaork Assets, Software and VC Cards are included in the Balance sheet as an Intangible asset where they are clearly linked to
long term economic benefits for the Company. In this case they are measured initially at purchase cost and then amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated usefui lives. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination (Goodwill) are reported
at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. .

(iif) Revenue Recognition

The Carriage, Marketing and Placement income is recognised in (he Statement of Profit & Loss on the basis of contract with the
customers. Since this is a continuous servics, therefore in few cases the Income is recognised following the trend of past basis in

the absence of agreement pending renewal.

(iv) Claims, Provisions and Contingent Liabilitics

The Company has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties. Where an outflow of funds is believed
to be probable and a reliable estimate of the cutcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s assessment of specific
circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such
accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve estimation uncertainty. Information
about such litigations is provided in notes to the financial statements.




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31% March 2022
{v) Uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:
The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying
amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries, In developing the assumptions relating to the possible
future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these
financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and related information,
economic forecasts, The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based on current estimates
expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements
may differ from that cstimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements,

(b) Property, Plant and Equipment

(i) Recognition and Measurement ] ,
Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised at cost\decmed cost less accumulated depreciation or impairment losses if any,
incurred to bring the asset to the present condition and location. The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price net of any
trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and interest on borrowings
attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the dafe the asset is ready for its intended use.

The cost of a self-constructed jtem of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials, direct labour and any other
costs directly altributable to bringing the item to its intended working condition and estimated costs of dismantling, removing
and restoring the sile on which it is located, wherever applicable.

If significant parts of an item of proi:erly, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. [

The items of spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments that satisfy the definition and recognition criteria of
Property , Plant and Equipment is classified under Capital work in progress, Capital Work in progress comprises of the cost of
fixed assets that are not put to use at the reporting date. :

Set top hoxes arc treated as part of Capital Work In Progress till at the end of the month of activation, afier which the same are
depreciated.

(ii) Depreciation on Tangible Assets . i
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the Management.
Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionately charged. Leascheld land is amortized over the
effective period of lease. The details of estimated life for cach category of asset are as follows:

Estimated uscful

Asset, life based an SLM
Buildings 60 years
Computers and Data Processing Equipment 3 years

Plant and Machinery 8 /15 years

Set Top Boxes : § years
Fumiture and Fixtures ' 10 years
Vehicles 8/10 years
Studio Equipments : : 13 years
Office Equipments . 5 years
Softwares which are an integral part of Property, Plant and Equipment - 6 years'

(i) Disposal of Assets
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assct and is recognized

in the statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Reclassification to Investment Property
‘When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the propetty is reclassified as investment

property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2022

©

(d
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(2)

Intangible Assets

Goodwill

Goodwill acquired on business combination is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Other Intangible Assets acquired through purchase/on business combination are measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
Iosses, if any.

The estimaled useful lives are as follows:-
Esfimated uscful

Asset

] . lifc based on SL.M
Network Assets 10 years
Software and VC Cards 6 years

Investment Property

Investment property is property held either to carn rental income ar for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in the
ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Upon initial
recognition, an investment property is measured at cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property is measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any,

The management believes a period of 60 years as representing the best estimate of the period aver which investment properties
{which arc quite similar) are expected to be used. Accordingly, the Company depreciates investment properties over a period of
60 years on a straight-line basis.

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from
the use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The net difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the catrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of derccognition.

Though the Company measures irvestment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.
The company has obtained valuation report for the Fair Valuation of the same.

Investment in_subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates
Subsidiaries are entities over which the company has control. The company controls an entity when the company is exposed to,

or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the relevant activities of the entity.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture, Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control,

An associate is an entity over which the company has significant influence, Significant influence is the power to participate in
the financial and operating policy decision of the investee but has no control or joint control over those policies.

The Company’s investments in its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates arc accounted at cost and reviewed for impairment

at each reporting date.

Investment in equity instruments

The company measures its equity investments other than in subsidiary, associates and joint ventures at fair value through Profit
and Loss account,

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) arc classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at the
lower of the carrying amount and the fair value less cost to sell.

An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset {or disposal group) to fair value less costs
to sell. A gain is recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in
excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A gain or loss not previously recognized by the date of the sale
of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognized at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortized while they are classified as
held for sale, Non-current assets (or disposal group) classified as held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet. Any
profit or loss arising from the sale or remeasurement of discontinued operations is pr as part of a single line item in

statement of profit and loss.

o




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31°° March 2022

(h) Impairment of Assets

@

(ii)

Financial Assets
For the purpose of computation of expected credit loss, the Company has analysed the trend of provisions for doubtful debts

‘created in earlier years and has also considered the fact that the Company has revenue from DAS customers which has been

booked as per prepaid model of billing. The expected credit loss has been computed on basis of recoverability (after analysing
each head separately) for DAS customers. Further, the Company has analysed expected credit loss separately for carriage
revenue customer (including Marketing & Placement Income customers) and other than carriage revenue customer primarily
because the characteristics and historical losses trend was different in these two streams.

Non-Financial Asscts

The Carrying amount of the Property, Plant & Equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard-36 on “Impairment of Assets™ prescribed by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) rules as
amended from time to time, to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment test is performed for an
individual asset, unless asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent. Otherwise the assets are tested for Cash
Generating Units (CGUs). An Impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the assets or CGU's carrying
amount exceeds the greater of Fair value less cost or Value in use. Reversal of Impairment are recognised (except Goodwill)
through Statement of Profit and Loss except those routed through reserves.

Leases

Where the Company is a lessor

Leases in which the company does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as
operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in Property, Plant and Equipment. Lease income on an operating
lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on monthly rental basis, wherever applicable over the lease term.

Where the Company is a lessee

"The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for premises. The Company assesses whether a contract contains a
lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right 1o control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right (o control the
use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contract involves the use of an identified asset, (2) the
Company has right to receive substantial economic benefits from use of the asset throughout the period of ihe lease and (3) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset throughout the period of use. At the date of commencement of the lease, the
Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU) and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a
lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low valuoe leases. For these short-term and
low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of
the lease. Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU
assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised. ROU assets are initially
recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to
the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying assct, ROU assets arc evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of
impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i, the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined
on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets.
In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The lease
liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities arc remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the company changes its assessment if whether it will excreise an exlension or a termination option. Lease liability and
ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified as financing cash flows,
The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of
leases with similar characteristics.

Inventories
Inventories are. valued as follows-

Stock in trade & Stores and spares are valued at cost on weighted average method or at net realisable value whichever is lower.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of busingss; ¢55 estinated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. .




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2022
(k) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer for an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is
measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of discounts, rebates, outgoing
taxes on sales of goods or services.

(i) Subscription Income from Cable Service
Subseription income includes subscription from subscribers/ Cable Operators relating to cable TV. Revenue from Operations is
recognised on accrual basis based on underlying subscription plan or agreements with the concemned subscribers/ Cable
Operators.

(if) Income From Activation Of Services .
The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 (revised) and accordingly these financial statements are prepared in accordance with
recognition and measurement principals laid down in Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers”. In pursuance of
the same, Income ffom activation of digital cable services is recognised as revenue over the initial contract peri'od.

(iif) Carriage, Marketing & Placement Income .
Carriage,Marketing and Placement Income is recognized on accrual basis over the terms of related agreemerits/ negotiations
provided that there is no significant uncertainty regarding the realisable amount of consideration.

(iv) Other Services
i) Income from insertion of advertisements is recognized on accrual basis from the date(s) of insertion of advertisements based

on the terms specified in the release orders,

ji) Income from rendering technical services is recognized on acorual basis
jii)Income from fiber leasing is recognized on accruat basis as per terms of the respective contracts.

(v) Lease Income
Lease income from supply of set top boxes is recongnised on accrual basis as per terms of agreement of lease.
Rental Income from Investment Property is recognised as per the respective lease agteements.

(vi) Sales of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when no significant uncertainties exist regarding the amount of consideration that will
bo derived and risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. The
company collects Goods and Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not economic benefits
flowing to the company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Revenue from High sea Sales are being recognised on transfer
of title of poods to the customers.

(I) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing Costs are the interest or the other cost which the entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of the funds. These

include interest expense calculated using the Effective interest method as per Ind AS 109, Borrowing cost which arg directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a "Qualifying Asset" are included in the cost of the asset when it is
probable that they will result in the future economic benefit to the entity and it's cost can be meastred reliably.

(m) Foreign Currency Transaction
“Transaction in foreign currency is recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the transaction date (g). Transaction remaining

unsettled, is translated at the rate prevailing at the end of the financial year. The exchange rate difference arising therefrom are
adjusted in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

{n) Cash Flow Hedge
A Cash Flow Hedge is used when an. entity is looking te eliminate or reduce the exposure that ariscs from changes in the cash

flows of a financial asset or liability (or other eligible exposure) due to changes in a particular risk. The accounting of derivate
instruments is made on commitment date rather than on settlement date .The Cash flow hedge is marked to market on the
reporting date and the Cash flow hedge reserve is shown under Other Equity. The effective portion of Cash flow hedge is
transferred to Other Comprehensive Income and the ineffective portion is transferred to Statement of Profit and Loss,

N
A/ PN
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INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2022

(0) Financial Instruments

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurcment

(i) Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument
of another entity.

I

|
Recognition.and initial mcasurement _
Financial assets and financial liabilitics arc rcménised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. The transaction costs that are directly atiributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through Profit or Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of financial asset or
financial liability, The transaction costs directly z:utributablc to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through Profit and Loss are immediately recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Effective interest method |
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allecating interest

income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future cash receipts or

payments through the expected life of the ﬁnanciall instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.
Compound Financial Instruments i
Separation of instrument into its liability and Equity component is made at the time of Initial recognition. The fair value of
liability component establishes its initial carrying amount which is then deducted from the fair value of the instrument as a whole
to arrive at the residual amount being recognised as the equity component. The fair value of the liability component at the initial
recognition is the Present value of the contractua!! stream of future cash flow discounted at the market rate of Interest that would

have been applied to the instrument of comparablc?. credit quality with substantially the same cash flow.

Financial Assets
Financial assets carried at amortised cost ., .

A financial asset is subsequently measuted at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the
asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash

flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
/ e | e

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a business model

whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the

financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash Pows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding. N i . . .

Financial assets al fair value through profit or Ios:s
A financial asset which is not classified in any of tlhe above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss.
i
Financial liabilities !
. | . . . .
Financial liabilities are subscquently carricd at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other payables
maturing within one year from the balance sheet ;date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of

these instruments. ;
|
The Company derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or

I
they expire. - :
|
|

(iv) Offsctting financial instruments | :

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and theinct amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognized amounts and there i;s an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultancously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on fiture events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insglvenay or bankruptey of the counterparty.




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for tle vear ended 31°° March 2022

{p) Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due, Payments made to state managed retirement
benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Company’s obligations under the schemes
are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.For defined benefit retirement schemes, the
cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuation being carried out at
each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) are recognised immediately
in other comprehensive income. The service cost, net jnterest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset) is treated as a net
expense within employment costs.

Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related restructuring
costs or termination benefits are recognised, whichever is earlier.

The retirement benefit obligation recogniséd in the balance sheet represents the present value of the defined-benefit obligation as
reduced by the fair value plan assets.

(q) Taxation

1)

©)
@

@

(b)

Tax expense for the year coniprises current and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in
the Statement of Profit and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. In
contrast, deferred fax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Cash_and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, e-wallet balance, deposits held at call with banks and other short term deposits
including the Bank Qverdraft.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
General

Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofa
past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying ecoromic benefits which can be reliably estimated.
Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date,
When appropriate, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:
by an established pattern of past practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has indicated
to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

asa result, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties that it will discharge those responsibilities.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to seitle a provision are expecled to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable

can be measured reliably.




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31%* March 2022

(ii) Contingent Liabilities
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may probably not
require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a present obligation where the likelihood of outflow of resources is
remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

(t) Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted average
number of equity sharcs outstanding during the period. The Company did not have any potentially dilutive securities in any of

the periods presented.

(u} Segment Reporting
Indian Cable Net Company Limited (the "Company™) predominantly operates in a single business segment of cable distribution

in India only, Hence there arc no separately reportable businesses or geographical segments as per Ind AS 108 on Operating
Segment,
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INDHAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the yvear ended 31st March 2022

Note 5 : INVESTMENT PROPERTY ¥ in Lakhs
PARTICULARS BUILDING
Year ended 31 March 2021
Gross Carrying Amount as on 01 April 2020 6,877
Additions -
Transfer from Property, plant & equipment -
ClosingGross Carrying Amount 6,877
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 270
Depreciation for the year 109
Transfer from Property, plant & equipment -
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 379
Closing Net Carrying Amount as on 31 March 2021 6,498
Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross Carrying Amount as on 01 April 2021 6,877
Additions -
Transfer from Property, plant & equipment 661
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 7,538
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 379
Depreciation charge for the year . 109
Transfer from Property, plant & equipment 42
Closing Accumulated Depreciation 529
Closing Net Carrying Amount as on 31 March 2022 7,009

Notes:

1. Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment Property Rs in Lakhs
For the year | For the year
Particulars ended ended
31-Mar-22| 31-Mar-21
Rental income derived from investment properties 703 480
Direct operating expenses that Generated rental income 380 295
291 267

Direct operating expenses that did not Generated rental income

2. The management has determined that the investment property consists of Building - based on the nature, characteristics and
risks of each property. The Company’s investment property consist of a portion ol its building situated at Kolkata on the basis of

present / intended use.

3.Refer note no.62 for information on investment property pledged as securities by the Company.

4. The Fair value of Investment Property as on 31 March 2022 was

independent valuer.

< 18694 (P Y T16045 lakhs ) lakhs as assessed by
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INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financiat statements for the vear ended 31st March 2022

7

10

1

[

12

Non-current investments (Trade, unquoted)
Long term investments

Investment in equity instruments-subsidiaries

(Valued at cost unless stated atherwise)

4523016 Nos (PY 4523016 Nos) of Equity Share of Siti
Maurya Cable net Pvt Ltd (FV T 10/-)

10000 Nes {PY 10000 Nos) of Equity Share of Indinet Service
Pyt Ltd {FV T 10/-)

7600 Nos (PY nil} of Equily Share of Meghbale Infitel Cable &
Broadband Pvi Litdable Pvt Lid (FV ¥ 10/)

Investment in equity instruments-others (Valued at FYTPL)
Nil (PY 125000 Nos) of Equity Share of Axom
Communications & Cable Pvt Lid { FV ¥ 10/-)

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Tin Lakhs
Mar 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
803 803
1 1
1 .
- 844
805 1,648

() During the year the company has acquired 7600 equity shares constiluting 76% of Paid Up Equity Share Capital of Meghbela Infitel Broadband & Cable Private
Limited (“Meghbela™), a Multi System Operator w.e.f. 8th of June,2021 at a total cash consideration of T 0.76 Lakhs. On the said acquisition, Meghbela has become
subsidiary w.e.f 8th of June,2021. Further, the company, on the basis of a Memorandum of Understanding ("MOU") entered into with Meghbela, has given unsecured
loan of T 1800 Lakhs and advances of ¥ 200 Lakhs to Meghbela on the terms and conditions setforth the said MOU for meeling their working capital requirement,

(b) During the current year the company has seld its equity stake in Axom Cable and Communication Private Limited,

Loans
Advances in the nature of loan to related party
{Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd, Subsidiary
Company and a company in which director is a director)
Loan to Related Parties :
1) Siti Network Ltd, Holding Company
iy Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pyt Ltd, Subsidiary
Company, and 2 company in which director is director
iii) Variety Entertainment Pvt Ltd, Fellow Subsidiary

193 -
1,125 -
1,300 -
4,812 4,812
7,930 4,812

The Company under an agreement has extended the existing loan to Variety Entertainment Pvt Ltd from 2 years to 5 years on the terms and conditions set forth in the

said agreement.

Further, the company, on tﬁe basis of a Memeorandum of Understanding ("MOU") entered into with Meghbela, has given unsecured loan of T 1800 Lakhs and advances

of ¥ 200 Lakhs to Meghbela on the terms and conditions setforth the said MOU for meeting their working capital requiremnent.

Other Non Current Financial Asscts
Security deposits
Margin money deposit (pledged) with statutory authorities

Others- Non Current Asscls
Pre- Paid Expenses

Capital Advances

Balances with Statutory Authority

Inventories
Stores and spares

Current investments { Quoted)

Investment At Fair Value Through Profit Or Loss
Investment in Mutual Funds

Tata Arbitrage Fund Growth Regular

Tata Money Market Fund Regular Plan Growth
Keotak Equity Arbitrage Fund Growth Regular

No of Units
26,18,698
13,490
10,98,681

£0 30
161 148
240 228
44 52
55 243
444 407
542 702
119 102
119 102
306 .-
511 -
332 .-




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Naotes to financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2022

Rts in Lakhs
13 Trade receivables Mar 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good , Includes Rs 458 lakhs (P Y Rs
839 lakhs)receivable from entities in which director is pariner, 4,049 3,869 -
member or director) .
Unsecured, considered doubtful {(Includes Nil (P Y Rs 41
lakhs) receivable from entities in which director is partner , 275 2,264
_member or director)
4,324 6,133
Less: Provision for Expected Credit Loss 275 2,264
4,049 3,869
Trade Reccivables ageing schedule for the year ended March,31 2022 is as follows:
Quistanding for following periods from due date of payment#
Less than 6 [ 6 months -1 More than 3
Particulars months year 01-02 years | 02-03 years years Total
(i) Undisputed - Trade reccivables — considered good 2,013 530 160 302 221 3,225
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 26 45 43 20 141 275
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good 369 454 - - - 824
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired* - - - - 0 [
Total 2,408 1,025 203 322 361 4,324
Less : Allowance for Credit Loss 275
Total Trade Receivables as on 31st March,2022 4,049
*Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired amounts to Rs 0.34 Lakhs
Trade Receivables ngeing schedule for the year ended March, 31 2021 is as follows:
Qutstanding for following periods from due dale of payment#
Less than 6 | 6 months - I More than 3
Particulars months year 01-02 years | 02-03 years years Total
(i) Undisputed - Trade receivables — considered good 1,217 341 679 915 194 3,846
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(iiii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 43 77 323 671 966 2,080
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good 10 12 1 1 - 23
{v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - . - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receijvables — credit impaired 39 37 63 2 43 184
Total 1,809 467 1,065 1,589 1,203 6,133
Less : Allowance for Credit Loss 2,264
Total Trade Receivables as on 3 1st March,2021 3,869

14

Star India Pvt, Ltd., a broadcasting customer of the company has disputed the Incentive invoices of the company w.e.f. Feb'2021 totaling to Rs, 884 lakhs (includes Rs
60 Lakhs unbilled) against bills raised on the alleged ground of violation of the Incentive Agreement and has withheld the payment of incentive payments to the
company. Being aggrieved, the compaty has filed a petition before the TDSAT against Star India Pvt. Ltd. In an interim rclief, TDSAT has ordered withholding part
payment to Star against their dues on account of "Pay Channel cost” towards incentive payments to the company. TDSAT has also prima facie upheld the contention of
the company. However, the outcome of the dispute is dependent on the final Order of TDSAT, The company is of the view that no provision is required in the books in
tespect of the Incentive receivable by the company and accerdingly has not made any provision in it's accounts.

Cash and bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

(Includes Cheque In Hand Rs 394 Lakh (CY ) Rs 1088 Lakh
(PY) and wallet balance/POS Balance Rs 65 Lakh (CY) Rs 83
Lakh {PY))

Balances with banks

In current accounts

In deposit account {with maturity upto three months)

470 1,183
525 360

- 2,810
994 4,353




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 3¥st March 2022

Tin Lakhs
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021
15 Other Bank Balances
In deposit account (with maturity uplo twelve months)* - 3
: - 3
*Pledged with bank against borrowings - -
16 Other Current Financial Assets
Interest acerued but not due 471 402
Unbilled revenue 322 306
793 708
17 Current Tax Assets (net)
Current tax liabilities
Provision for tax 2,129 1,286
Current tax assets
Advance tax 3411 2,427
1,282 1,141
18 Other current assets
Advance to Vendors 81 291
Advance to Related Parties (Firm in which director is pariner} 33 73
Balances with statutory authorities 120 89
Prepaid Expenses 39 102
323 554
19 Share capital
Authorised share capital _
87,857,300 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/ each 8,786 8,786
30540 Preference Shares of ¥ 100/- each 31 31
“Total authorised capital 8,816 8816
Issued sharc capital
8,64,01,070 Equity Shares of T 10/- each 8,640 8,640
(Out of above 313,10,000 Nos of equity shares of T 10/- each
alloted for consideration other than cash in pursuant to the
scheme of amalgamation
Total issucd capital 8,640 8,640
Subscribed and fully paid up capital
8,64,01,070 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 8,640 8,640
Total paid up capital 8,640 8,640
Reconcilation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at Mar 31,2022 and March 31, 2021 are set out below
{DEquity Shares
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Nos ¥ in Lakhs Nos ¥ in Lakhs
At the beginning of the peried 864,01,070 8,640 864,01,070 8,640
Qutstanding at the end of the year 864,01,070 8,640 864,01,070 __ 8,640

Terms & rights attached to equity sharcs

The company has only one class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

Tn the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of cquity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

Out of Equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Nos T in Lakhs Nos T in Lakhs
Equity Shares
Holding Company -Siti Network Limited 518,31,000 5,183 518,31,000 5,183
Subsidiary‘ r{f Holding Company- Central Bombay Cable 30,000 3 30,000 3
Network Limited Y -
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Details of share holder holding more than 5% share as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021

Name of Shareholder

Equity Shares

As at 31* March 2022

As at 31" March 2021

No. of Shares | % of Holding

No. of Shares | % of Holding

Siti Network Limited, Holding Company 518,31,000 59.99 518,31,000 59.99
Anurag Chirimar 52,36,357 6,056 52,336,357 6.06
Sunil Nihalani 54,54,347 6.31 54,54,347 6.31
Suresh Sethiya 54,51,007 6.31 54,51,007 6.31
Tinkari Duita 52,44,586 5.07 52,44,586 6.07
Jawed Igbal 52,25,596 6.05 - -
Zafar Igbal - - 52,25,596 6.05
Surendra Kumar Agarwal 52,19,377 6,04 52,19.377 6.04
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year
As at 31st March 2022 As at 31st March 2021

o % Change . .
Promoters name No, of Shares s{:::::m 3:::-ng the  [No. of Shares [%of total shares tﬁ’e(;[:::ge during
Central Bombay Cable Network Lid. 30,000 0.03% 0.00% 30,000 0.03% 0.00%
Siti Networks Limited 518,31,000 59.99% 0.00%| 51831,000 59.99% 0.00%
Mr. Anurag Chirimar 52,36,357 6.06% 0.00%|  52,36,357 6.06% 0.00%
Mrs. Sweeta Chirimar 1,07,480 0.12% 0.00% 1,07,480 0.12% 0.00%
Mr.Sunil Nihalani 54,71,387 6.33% 0.02%)|  54,54,347 6.31% 0.00%
Mr. Gopi Chand Nihiani - 0.00% -0.02% 17,040 0.02% 0.00%
M. Suresh Kumar Sethiya 54,51,007 6.31% 0.00%|  54,51,007 6.31% 0.00%
Mrs. Sudha Sethiya 16,810 0.02% 0.00% 16,810 0.02% 0.00%
M. Tinkari Dutta 52,44,586 6.07% 0.00%]  52,44,586 6.07% 0.00%
Mr Jawed Iqbal 52,25,596 6,05% 6.05% - 0.00% 0.00%
Mr Zafar Igbal - 0.00% -6.05%|  52,25,596 6.05% 0.00%
Gurukripa Comlink Pvt. Litd. 2,11,970 0.25% 0.00% 2,11,970 0.25% 0.00%
Statt Investment & Services Pvt.Ltd. 3,30,430 0.38% 0.00% 3,350,430 0.38% 0.00%
Smart Vinimay Pvt, Ltd. 20,25,000 2.34% 0.00%}  20,25,000 2.34% 0.00%
Mr. Surendra Kumar Aparwala 5219377 6.04% 0.00% 52,19,377 6.04% 0,00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Lid, jointly with Mr. Arun 10 0.00%
Kumar Agarwal ) 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Lid. jointly with Mr. Gulshan 0 0.00%
Khandelwal : ) 0,00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jeintly with Mz, Rohtash 10 0.00% ]
Jain 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Lid. jointly with Mr. Brijesh 10 0.00%
Goel ' 0.00% - 0.00% (.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jointly with Mr. Shio } 0.00%
Kumar Gupta ) 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jointly with Mr. Suresh 10 0.00%
Kumar i 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Lid. jointly with Mr. Suresh 10 0.00%
Kumar Vobbilireddi s 0.00% 30 0.00% 0.00%
864,01,070 864,01,070

* Central Bombay Cable Network Lid holds beneficial interest of these shares

T in Lakhs

Other Equity

Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year

Surplus / Deficit in the Statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Proft\(Loss) for the year

Other Comprehensive Income

Balance at the end of the year

Mar 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

18,968 18,968
18,568 18,968
15,461 14,466
1,537 977
23 13
17,021 15,461

35,989 34,429
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22

23

24

25

Non Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings

(a) Term loans from banks (Sceurcd)
Term loans

Term loan from Axis Bank carrying interest @ one year MCLR
+ 1.60 % p.a. repayable in 4 half yearly installments, secured by
the first and exclusive # equitable mortage of land and building
at Plot No.- XI4, Block- EP & GP, Sector-V, Salt Lake,
Kolkata-700091, exlcusive security interest in the movable asset
and entire current assets including receivables,both present and
future and pledge of 29.99% shares of the company held by Siti
Networks Ltd (Holding Company)

Other Non-Current financial liabilities
Security Deposit
Tnterest free deposits from customers

Non Current Pravisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Others- Provision for Churn STB's (Refer Note:60)

Deferred tax asset /(liabilities) (net)
Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reporfing

Other timing differences
Gross deferred tax liability

Deferred tax asset
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and
less in the current year but allowed for tax purposes on payment

basis
Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Impact of Lease liability against ROU Assets Rs 15,070( P Y Rs
11882/) .

Gross deferred tax assct

Net deferred tax asset/ (liabilities)

Other Non-Current liabilities
Deferred Income

Tin Lakhs

Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021

- 3,500

. 3,504
387 344
368 242
755 586
113 112
105 126
515 175
733 412
204 : 762
6 118
210 880
64 67
69 570
Y ©
133 637
(76) (243)
Tin Lakhs

Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021

199 179

199 179
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26 Current Financial Liabilities
Borrowings
Overdraft from Axis Bank

(Secured by first charge on entire current assets of the company,
both present and future and also secured by the first and
exclusive equitable mortage land and building at Plot No.- X1/4,
Block- EP & GP, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata-700091.

Current maturities of long-term borrowings

T in Lakhs
Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021

(The quarterely returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with the bank are in agreements

with books of accounts}

27 Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of creditors for micro enterprises and
small enterprises (Refer Note No : 46)
- Total putstanding dues of creditors- others

1,354 1,703
3,500 3,084
4,853 4,787

9 He
6,079 7,300
6,088 7,310

Trade Payable ageing schedule for the years ended as on 31st March,2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

parti Lessthan 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
articulars year yCAars
(i) MSME 9 - - - 9
(ii) Others 2998 749 778 1,498 6,023
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others 9 8 8 30 55
Total Trade Payable as on 31st March, 2022 3,017 757 786 1,528 6,088
"Trade Payable ageing schedule for the years ended as on 31st March,2021
) Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less th;::a}, 1-2 years 2-3 yedrs Maore t];::;: Total
(i) MSME 10 - - - 10
(ii) Others 5,725 291 364 860 7,240
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others 8 8 8 36 60
Total Trade Payable as on 31st March, 2021 5,743 299 372 896 7,310
28 Other Current financial liabilities
Creditors for capital goods 55 1,391
Payable for Contractual Liabilities 39 . 25
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 27 u
120 1416
29 Other Current Liabilities
Uneamed Income 1,227 1,264
Advances from customers 572 500
Other Advances 0 ) 0
Payable for statutory liabilities 442 477
2,242 2,241
30 Current Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity 17
12

Provision for compensated absences

29
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31

*

32

33

34

35

Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Subscription income
Advertisement income
Carriage income & Marketing Income
Activation and Set top boxes pairing
charges

Other operating revenuc
Sale of traded goods*
Lease rental charges
Other networking and management
income
Rent Income
Other Operating Income

Details of sale of traded goods
Set top box and viewing cards
Stores and spares

Other income
Gain on foreign exchange flucteation
Interest income on

Bank deposits

Others
Bad Debt Recovered
Liabilities written back
Provision no longer required written back
Profit on sale of Investment
Net gain in Fair value of investments through P&L
Other non-eperating income

Cost of materials consumed-stores and spares
Opening stock
Add : Purchases during the year

Less: Transferred to CWIP

Less : Closing stock

Cost/Purchase of Goods Sold
Set top boxes and VC Cards

Pay channel and related costs

Pay channel Expenses

Building Maintenance Expenses
Lease Rental & Right to Usage Charge
Bandwidth Cost

Program Production Expenses

Other Operational Expenses
Commission Charges and Incentives

Tin Lakhs

March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
24,788 27,958
6,524 4,503
5,249 4,108
135 84
204 1,081
540 428
1,671 1,819
703 480
643 445
40,456 40,906
150 974
54 107
704 T,081

2 .

60 72
610 437

- 5

179 767
58 u
182 -
24 -
433 497
1,548 1,778
102 77
156 79
259 156

- 1

259 155
119 102
140 53
171 948
171 948
19,452 19,112
52 50
710 689
652 619
190 193
1,939 1,825.
1,358 2218
24,354 24,705
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Tin Lakhs
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021

36 Employce benefits expense

Salaries, allowances and bonus 1,844 1,682
Contributions 1o provident and other funds 99 97
Gratuity Fund Contribution - 48 46
Staff welfare expenses 103 134

2,094 1,959

37 Finance cosis

Interest on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost 526 9289
Interest expense on lease liability 11 11
Bank charges 3 8

540 1,008

38 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation on Right of use assets 57 59

Depreciation of tangible assels 5,140 5,975

Amortisation of intangible assets 1,818 1,864
7,015 7,898

39 Other expenses

Rent 130 127
Rates and taxes 186 182
Communication expenses 64 65
Repairs and maintenance

- Network 313 438

- Building 22 12

- Others 203 250
Electricity and water charges ' 571 543
Legal, professional and consultancy 667 695
Printing and stationery 7 [
Service charpes 1,471 1415
Travelling and conveyance cxpenses 232 194
Auditors’ remuneration (Refer Note: 55) 13 12
Vehicle expenses 233 242
Tnsurance expenses . 17 15
Net loss in Fair value of investments - 214
through P&L
Corporate Social Responsibility 7 27
Expenditure
Loss on Sale / Discard / Write off of Assets(net) 606 I3
Provision for Chum STB's " 340 21
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 112 420
Provision for doubtful advances Nil (PY Rs - 0
17,700)
Rebate and Discount ) - 1
Advertisement and publicity expenses 200 54
Bad debts 2,022
Less: Debts w.off from earlier provisions (2,022) 0 1
Business and sales promotion 66 . 40
Exchange fluctuation loss - 42
Miscellaneous expenses 24 84

5485 5111

(*’? Kollzatz } ¢
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Note No; 40

T in Lakhs

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended
31 March 2022

Year Ended
31 March 2021

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans as under 31 25
Remeasurement of employee benefit obligations
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassfied 1o {profit)
or loss ®) ©)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(iiYIncome Tax relating to items that will be reclassfied to profit or loss - -
23 18
Note No: 41
E ings h Year Ended Year Ended
arnings per share 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021
Profit attributable to equity shareholders (Rs lakhs) 1,537 977
Number of weighted average equity shares
Basic 864,01,070 864,01,070
Diluted 864,01,070 864,01,070
Nominal value of per equity share (3) 10 10
Earning Per Share ()
Basic 1.78 1.13
1.78 1,13

Diluted
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Note :42 Tax Expense
The major components of Income Fax for the year are as under: ZTin Lakhs
Mar-22 Mar-21
Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss
(i) Current tax - current year 817 469
- earlier years 17 103
(if) Deferred tax charge / (benefit) (166) {547)
Income tax expense reported in Profit or Loss [(i)+(ii}] 668 25
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Current Tax {income) / expense on remeasurement of defined benefit plans 8 6
8 6
Effective tax rate 30.31% 2.52%

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to the profit before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax expense at
|the Company’s effective income tax rate for the year ended 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021 is as follows:

Mar-22 Mar-21
Profit/(loss) before tax 2,205 1,002
Effective Tax Rate 25.17% 25.17%
Statutory income tax on profit 555 252
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 2,052 2,179
Additional allowances for tax purposes {1,916) (1,963)
Others / Deferred Tax effect (166} (547)
Capital Gain Taxes 126 -
Tax effect for earlier years 17 103
668 25

Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

The applicable statutory Income Tax rate is 25.17% for the FY 2021-22 (25.17% for FY 2020-21).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the

deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes refer note no-24.
The Company does not have any temporary differences in respeet of unutilised tax losses.

Deferred tax recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended Mar-22 Mar-21
Employee retirement benefits obligation 3 )
Allowances for credit losses 500 378
Depreciation and amortisation (558) 871)
Other disallowances (112) {52)
Total (166) (547)
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilitics) net: Mar-22 Mar-21
Opening balance (243) (790)
Mat Credit (adjusted} / entitlement - -
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in

-Other Equity (Retained Earnings) - -

-Statement of profit and loss 166 547

-Other comprehensive income
Total (76) (243)

P

\"‘ Kolkata C );
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INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022

Fair value measurements
Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2022:

A. Financial instrumentis by category Zin Lakhs
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

FVTPL FVOCI Amortised cost FYTPL FVQCI Amortised cost
Financial assets (Non Current & Current)
Bank deposits - - 161 - - 148
Inter- Corporate Deposit . - 7,930 - - 4,812
Security deposits {(Non current) - - 80 - - 80
Investment (Non- current & Current, financial
assets) 1,149 - 805 844 - 804
Unbilled revenues - - 322 - - 306
Interest accrued and not due - - 471 - - 402
Trade receivables - - 4,049 - - 3,869
Cash and cash equivalents - - 994 - - 4,353
Other Bank Balances - - - - - 3
Total financial assets 1,149 - 14,812 844 - 14,777

Financial liabilities (Nont Carrent &

Current) .
Borrowings {non-current financial liabilities) - - - - - 3,500
Borrowings {current, financial liabilities) - - 4,853 - - 4,787
Security deposits received from customer & - - 824 - - 656
Lease Hability

Trade payables - - 6,088 - - 7.310
Other financial liabilities {(current) - - 120 - - 1,416
Total financial liabilitics - - 11,885 - - 17,669

Investment in subsidiaries, associate and joint venture are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27, 'Separate financial statements’,

Fair Value Hierarchy

*¥The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as cash & cash equivalents,other bank balances short term trade
receivables, short term trade payables because theif carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value,

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 — Inputs for the assets or liabilities that arc not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The cost of unquoted investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value because there is a wide range of possible

fair value measurcments and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilitics measured at fair value en a recutring basis as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :

31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
Particulars (Rs in Lakhs) | (Rs in Lakhs) Level Valuation Techinques and Key Points

Financial Assets :

The mutual funds are valued using the
1,149 - 1 closing NAY

Net Asset value of share has been
considered as its fair value

Investment in Mutual Funds

Investment in Equity Shares - 844 3

Rs in Lakhs

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets is as follows:
31-03-2022| 31-03-2021

Balance at the begitning of the year 844 1,058
Impairment in value of investments - =214
Deletions during the year -844 -

Balance at the end of the year - 844
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INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022

(I} Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial risk management

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to
finance the Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and
other receivables, and cash and short-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The Company's activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks,
which arc summarised below: .

A. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty 1o a financial instrument will fail to perform or pay amounts due to the Company causing
financial loss. The Company's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The Company continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information
into its credit risk controls.

Credit risk management

Credit risk rating

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and
factors specific to the class of financial assets,

A: Low credit risk on financial reporting date
B: High credit risk

The Company provides for expected credit loss based on the following,
Asset group Basis of categorisation Provision for expeeted credit loss

Cash and cash equivalents and other financial assels except
Low credit risk Trade Receivable,securily deposits,Unbilled revenue and
amount recoverable

Life time expected credit loss or fully
provided for

Hieh credit risk Trade receivables, Investment,security deposits, Unbilled Life time expected credit [oss or fully
184 credit ns Revenue and amount recoverable provided for

Based on business environment in which the Company cperates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make
payments within the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defanlts are based on actual credit loss experience and considering

differences between current and histerical economic conditions.

T in Lakh
Credit rating Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets except
Low credit risk Trade Receivable security deposits,Unbilled revenue and 1,155 4,504
amount recoverable
. .. Trade receivables,Investment,security deposits, Unbilled
High credit risk Revenue and amount recoverable Y 14,805 13,117

Concentration of trade receivables
The Company has widespread customers and there is no concentration of trade receivables.
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Credit risk exposure

Pravision for expected credit losses

For the purpose of computation of expected credit loss, the Company has analysed the trend of provisions for doubtful debts created in earlier years
and has also considered the fuct that the Company has revenue from DAS customers which has been booked as per prepaid model of billing, The
expected credit loss has been computed on basis of recoverability (after analysing cach head separately} for DAS customers. Further, the Company
has analysed expected credit loss separately for carriage revenue customer (including Marketing & Placement Income customers) and other than
carriage revenuc customer primarily because the characteristics and historical losses trend was different in these two streams. The company does not
expect any further risk of credit impairment on account of possible impact relating to COVID 19 in estimating expected credit loss provision.

Expected credit loss for trade receivables, scourity deposit and amounts recoverable under general approach‘

As at March 31, 2022 Zin Lakh

Estimated Carrying amount
Particulars cagrmsii Expelc::sr]c:redlt net of impairment

am?:mtg provision

Trade receivables 4,324 275 4,049
Security Deposit ’ 30 - 80
Inter - Corporate Deposit 8,401 - 8,401
Investment . 1,953 1,953
Unbilled Revenue 322 322
As at March 31, 2021 Tin Lakh

Estimated Carrying amount
Particulars cagrmifl Expc;:;:i:rcdlt net of impairment

aml(':{mtg provision

Trade receivables 6,133 2,264 3,869
Security Deposit 80 - 80
Investment 1,648 1,648
Unbilled Revenue 306 - 306
Inter- Corporate Deposit 5214 5214
Reconciliation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables ¥ in Lakh
Loss allowance on March 31, 2021 2,264
Changes in loss allowance (1.989)
Loss allowance on March 31, 2022 275
B.Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that suitable sources of funding for the Company's business activities may not be availablé .

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close ouf market positions, Management monitors rolting forecasts of the
Company’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows,
Short term liquidity requirements comprises mainly of trade payables and employee dues arising during normal course of business as on each
balance sheet date, Long- term liquidity requirement is assessed by the management on periodical basis and is managed through internal accruals
and through funding commitments from sharcholders. As at each statement of financial position date, the Company’s liabilities having contractual
maturities (including interest payments where applicable) are summarised as follows:
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(ii) Maturities of financial liabilities
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their carrying balances as the

impact of discounting s not significant.

T in Lakh
Contractual maturitics of financial 31-Mar-22 31:Mar-21
liakilitics Lessthan Onetotwo More than two | Less than One to two More than two
one year years years one year years years

Non-derivatives
Borrowings (non-current,financial liabilities) - - - 519 3,748 -
Borrowings (current,financial liabilitics)
. L= 5,128 - - 4,787 - -
including interest
Other financial liabilities (current) 93 - - 1,416 - . -
Security deposits received from customer - - 755 - - 586
Trade payables 6,088 - - 7,310 - -
Lease liabilities in respect of right of use . 42 25 3 46 16 7
assets
Total non-derivative liabilities 11,350 25 758 14,079 3,764 593
C.Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - will affect the Company’s income or the
value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within

acceptable parameters, while optimising the retum.

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting

The Company has foreign currency exposure in the form of Trade Payable/Advance to Vendors and is exposed to change in the exchange rates.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the
company’s functional currency (). The risk is measured through a forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows.

Foreign currency risk is managed by following established risk management policies, which inter alia includes monitoring the movements in
currencies in which the capex vendors are payable and hedging the exposure to foreign currency risk by entering into forward currency contracts as
and when deemed appropriate.

The Company does not enter into or trade financial instrument including derivative for speculative purposc.

(i) Forcign currency risk
Foreign currency risk exposure:
The Company's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows

¥ in Lakh
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 |
Financial assets (A) - -
Financial liabilities (B)
Payable to capex and other vendors 188 230
188 230
188 230

Net exposure (B-A)
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Sensitivity
The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.
¥ in Lakh
Impact on Profit after tax
. 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
{ T)/ USD increased by 5% (previous year 5%} (9} a2
(%) / USD decreased by 5% (previous year 5%) 9 12

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Comapny to cash flow interest rate
risk. '

(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The Company’s policy is to minimise intcrest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing, At 31st March the Company is exposed to
changes in market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates. Other borrowings are at fixed interest rates.

¥ in Lakh

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Variable rate borrowings 3,500 6,584

Total borrowings 3,500 6,584
(b) Sensitivity

Profit or [oss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates. ¥ in Lakh

Impact on loss after tax

\ . 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (P Y 100 bps) * 35.00 65.84

Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points (P Y100 bps) * (35.000 (65.84)

(11) Capital management

Risk Management

The Company’s chjectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and provide adequate return to sharcholders through continuing growth. The Company’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from previous year. The Company sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include
capital and other strategic investments The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fiund generation and other non-
current borrowings. The Company’s policy is to use current and non-current borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements. The Company
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio which is net debt divided by total capital (equity plus net debt) . The Company is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements, Net debt are non-current and current borrowings as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank
balances and current investments, Equity comprises all components including other comprehensive income.

¥ in Lakh

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Current Investment 1,149 -
Cash and cash equivalents . 994 4,353
Other Bank Balances - 3
Margin money 161 148
Total cash (A) 2,304 4,504
Borrowings {non current, financial liabilities) - 3,500
Borrowings (current, financial liabilities) : 4,853 4,787
Interest Accrued but not due on Loan 27 -
Total borrowing (B) 4,880 8,287
Net debt (C=B-A) ; 2,576 3,783
Total equity 44,629 43,069
Total capital (cquity + net debts) (D) ) 47,205 46,852

’ 8%

Gearing ratio (C/D) 5%
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Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities

The classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on facts
and circumstances existing at the date of transition.

Financial assets can be measured using effective interest method by assessing its contractual cash flow characteristics only on the basis of facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition and if it is impracticable to assess elements of medified time value of money i.e. the use of effective
interest method, fair valuc of financial asset at the date of transition shall be the new carrying amount of that asset. The measurement exemption
applies for financial liabilities as well. '

Applying a requirement is impracticable when an entity cannot apply it after making every reasenable effort to do so. It is impracticable to apply
the changes retrospectively if:

a) The effects of the retrospective application or retrospective restatement are not determinable;
b) The retrospective application or restatement requires assumptions about what management’s intent would have been in that period;

The retrospective application or retrospective restatement requires significant estimates of amounts and it js impossible to distinguish objectively
information about those estimates that existed at that time.
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45 Contingcnt liabilitics and commitments {to the extent not provided for)

Asat3l Mar Asat31 Mar-
2022 2021

@) in Lakhs () in Lakhs

Particulars

(i) Contingent Liabilitics

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt ¥ 8,820 8,840
(b} Guarantces ## 114 . 115
8,934 8,955

(ii) Commitments .
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for
(Net of Advances) 37 1,871

37 1,871

# Includes Rs 401 { PY Rs 401 lakhs) lakhs on account of entty tax on import of STB and other networking materials into West Bengal. The West
Bengal governtment levied entry tax vide *West Bengal Tax on entry of goods into local arcas Act 2012°. The operation of the Act was w.e.f. 1st Apr-
2012. The validity of the this levy has been challenged by the company in the Honorable Calcutta High Court by a writ petition, on the belief that the
levy is unconstitutional and is thus unsustainable. The company is hopeful of getting a favourable order. _

# Includes Rs 6 (PY Rs 6 lakhs) lakhs against a money suit filed by M/s Ten Dot Net Cable Pvt. Ltd. for recovery of alleged dues against a work
contract allegedly done for the company.

# Includes Rs 87 (PY Rs 87 lakhs) lakhs on account of demand received from District Magistrate Noida for Entertainment Tax on activation /
installation charges of STB's in UP, Demand received of Rs 87 lakhs for the period till Jun 17 on activation charges on STB's.

# Includes Rs 37 (PY Rs 37 lakhs) lakhs on account of Show cause cum demand received from Service Tax dept for financial year 2014-15 & 2015-
16 and Rs 25 (PY Rs 25 lakhs) Lakhs on account of Show Cause Notice cum demand received from service tax Deptt on observation of Service Tax
audit for .Y, 16-17 & upto June'17 for excess utilisation of Cenvat Credit & short payment of RCM on which the company believes that no liability”

will develop on the company in future,
# Tncludes Rs 58 (PY Rs 78 lakhs) lakhs on account of demand received from Joint Commissioner {AE) Central Tax-UP. The demand is against Audit
for FY 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-16 & 2016-17.

# Includes Rs 416 ( PY Rs 416 lakhs) lakhs of Demand by Sales tax Deptt. on account of VAT & CST lability for FY.2015-16, The copmany files a
writ petition before Tribunal, The writ petition has been disallowed on the ground of Non attendance, now restoration petition was filed before Kolkata

High Court & the company is hopefill of getting a favourable order .

# Includes Rs 116 (PY Rs 116 lakhs) lakhs on account of Jharkhand VAT liability on Set Top Box transfer.

# Includes Rs 11 (PY Rs 11 lakhs) lakhs on account of show cause notice received from Deptt. for short payment of service Tax & inadmissibility of
Cenvat & non payment of RCM & Interest in respect of Noida unit for FY.12-13 to FY.15-16,

# Includes Rs 4 (PY Rs 4 lakhs) lakhs on account of case filed by Den Network against Sahay Cable, Nilabh & Vinod kumar in which ICNCL is also

being made party for recovery of their dues.
# Includes Appeal against Demand (CERA) of Rs 86 (PY Rs 86 lakhs) lakhs for difference between opening & closing Cenvat in the month of
Qet'2015 .

# Includes effect of reduction in MAT credit with conseguent impact on MAT utilisation in A.Y. 2017-18 which is the subject matter of Contingency.
Amount calculated as difference between MAT credit availed as per ITR filed for A.Y, 2016-17 Rs 317 (PY Rs 317 lakhs) lakhs and MAT credit

availabic as per Order w/s 143(3) Rs 28 (PY Rs 28 lakhs) lakhs,

# Includes Rs 212 Lakhs (Rs PY - 212 lakhs) on account of disputed pay channel liabilities of Broadcasters as the rate charged as per Invoices for
different packages are higher than as agreed between Broadeasters & the Company.

# [ncludes income tax demand for AY 2017-18 Rs 218 Lakhs (PY Rs 218 lakhs) which has been adjusted with TDS refundable. The said demand

has been disputed in appeal by the company.

# Includes income tax demand for AY 2018-19 Rs 182 Lakhs (PY : Rs 182). The said demand has been disputed in appeal by the company.

# During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Directorate of Revenue Intelligence (DR1), Bangalare, u/s 108 of the Custom Act, 1962, had
inquired about the classification of viewing cards for applicability of customs duty. The Company had, suo-moto, paid Rs 20 lakhs under protest.
Subsequently, the Company has received a show cause notice with a demand for Rs 6671 lakhs. The company has filed a Writ Petition before the
Hor'ble Delhi High Court challenging the Show Causc Notice and is confident that the demand will not sustain, Therefore no provision has been made
in these financial statements and the amount demanded has been considered as contingent liability.

## For counter bank guarantees in respect of outstanding bank guarantees & FD pledged Rs 1 14 lakhs (PY Rs 115 lakhs)

In addition, the company is subject to legal ﬁroceeding and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The company's management
does not reasonably expect that there legal action, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverse effect on the

company's result of operation or financial conditions.
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46

47

48

49

T in Lakhs
Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises:
as at as at
Particulars 31-03-2022 31-63-2021
9 10

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of]
each accounting year, !

i} the amount of interest paid by the Company in terms of section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006, along
with the amounts of the payment made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during {he year

i} the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but bevond the appointed day during the year without adding the interest specified under
MSMED Act, 2006

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

v) the amount of further interest remaining duc and payable even i the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, [or the purpose of
disatlowance a5 a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Auct, 2006.

#The management has identified dues (o micro and small enterprises as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED) on the basis of information made available by the supplier or vendors of the Company.

Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Particulars () in Lakhs (%) in Lakhs
Stores and Spares 74 66
Capital Goods 292 200
366 265
Expenditurc in foreign currency
B 31-Mar-22 __ 31-Mar-21
Particulars (D in Lakhs (%) in Lakhs
Membership & Subscription 4 4
Annual Maintenance Charges 23 79
Licence Fees 566 722
Travelling & Conveyance - 1
598 806

At the year end, unhedged foreign currency cxposures are as follows:

As on 31/03/2021

As on 31/03/2022
. T In Foreign T In Foreign
Particulars Currency (In Lakhs)  Currency (In Lakhs) Currency
Advance to Vendor UsSD 48 0.64 36 0.49
Payable to Vendor uspD - - 28 0.38
Payable to Vendor Euro 188 2.22 202 2.35
Total 236 2.85 266 322
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50 (i) The details of employee benefit for the peried in respect of gratuity which is funded defined benefit plan is as under:

a. Component of employer expense

(%) in Lakhs ) in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As on 31* Mar 2022 As on 31% Mar 2021

Current Service Cost 38 37
Interest on defined benefit obligation 21 19
Expected Return on plan assets (12) {10)
Net Accrual losses/(gains) recognized in the year {11) (24)
Past Service Cost - -
Total Included in employer benefit 37 22
Actual Retum on plan assets 10 11

b. Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the balance sheet as at 31* March 2022

(%) in Lakhs

(T) in Lakhs

PARTICULARS As on 31" Mar 2022 As on 31% Mar 2021
Present Value of Funded Obligation 336 293
Fair Value of Plan Assets 200 164
Net Liability 135 128
Amount in Balance Sheet
Liability 135 128
Assets
Net Liability 135 128
¢. Reconciliation of Benefit Obligation & Plan Asscts for the Period ended:
(%) in Lakhs () in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As on 31" Mar 2022 As on 31% Mar 2021
Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 293 266
Current Service Cost 38 37
Interest Cost 2] 19
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) {13) {23)
Past Service Cost - -
Benefits Paid 3 (6)
Closing Defined Benefit Qligation 336 293
Change in Fair Value of Assets
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 164 140
Expected Return on Plan Assets 12 10
Actuarial Gain / {(Losses} (2) 1
Contribution by Employer 30 | 19
Benefits Paid (3) (6)
Closing Fair Value on Plan Assets 200 164
Expected Employer Contribution Next Year 37 38
d. Asset Information of Plan Assets
Category of Assets As on 31" March 2022 As on 31% Mareh 2021
160% 100%

Insurer Managed Fund

{ii) The Defined Benefit Obligation of compensated absence in respect of Privilege Leave is Rs. 1 18 lakh (P.Y Rs 138 lakh).

(iii) Actuarial Assumptions

Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.)

Catcgory of Assefs As on 317 March 2022 As on 31* March 2021
Discount Rate (p.a.) 7.25% 7.00%
Expected rate of return on Assets 7.00% 7.00%
8.00% 8.00%

a Discount Rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Govemment Securities as the batance sheet as date for expected term of

obligation.

b Expected rate of refurn on plan assets is based on our expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investment of the fund

during the estimnated term of obligations.

¢ Salary Escalation rate is based on estimates of future salary increases taking into consideration of inflation, seniority, promotion and other

relevant factors.
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51 The Commercial Tax authorities, Government of West Bengal, by an order dated June 9, 2003, sought to impose sales tax, with retrospective effect
from April 2, 1997, on the Company’s income from cable TV services. The Company has filed an application before the Hon’ble West Bengal
Taxation Tribunal on July 15, 2003, seeking, inter alia, that the aforesaid order be set aside. The Hon’ble West Bengal Taxation Tribunal by its order
dated August 1, 2003 has directed that pending disposal of the application, asscssment proceedings may continue but that no demand notice will be
issued. The matter had come for hearing on several occasions but has been adjoumned, pending State’s submissions, In view of the fact that neither
assessment proceedings have been completed nor demand notice has been issued, the alleged liability for Sales tax cannot be ascertained.
Consequently no liability on account of sales tax has been recognized by the Company in the books of accounts.

52 During the year, one of the Financial Creditor of Siti Networks Ltd. ("SNL" or "The Holding Co".) has filed a petition v/s 7 of the Insolvency and
Bankcruptey Code, 2016 ("IBC") before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (NCLT)for alleged default in repayment of financial
liability, which is pending for admission before the NCLT. The company is of the view that no provision is required in the books in respect of an
unsecured loan outstanding as on 31 March, 22 of ¥ 1125 Lakhs given to SNL during the year and trade Receivable which SNL owes to the company
in view of the pendency of the proceedings for the admission of the petition under IBC and also in view of the prospective seftlement of dues in course
of the regular nature of business transactions between the company and SNL, and accordingly no provision has been made in the accounts.

53 Company as a lessee
The company has leases for office premises and residential fiats. The amount recognised in the Standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of right of use
asset and lease obligation are as under:

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Depreciation 57 59
Interest Expense on
Lease Liability 11 11
Reconcilliation of the lease liability

Rs In Lakhs
Particulars 31st March 2022 31st March 2021
Balance at the beginning {
of the year 70 122
recognized during the
year 55 8
Interest Expense on
Lease Liability 11 11
Cash Outflow 67 70
Balance at the end of
the year 69 70

The Company incurred Rs 130 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022 towards expenses relating to short-term leases and leases of low-value assets,
The total cash outflow for leases is Rs 67 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022 . Interest on lease liabilities is Rs 11 lakhs for the year ended

March 31, 2022,

Lease contracts entered by the Company majorly pertains for prem{scs taken on lease to conduct its business in the ordinary course. The Company
does not have any lease restrictions and commitment towards variable rent as per the contract.

Company as & lessor
54 The gom);,)any has grven prenuses and Set l'op Boxes under Uperating Lease, particulars of which as required under Ind AS ~116 are disclosed here

under: A :
Premises and Set Top Boxes given under operating leases are capitalized at an amount equal to historical cost and the rental income, wherever

applicable, is recognised on equal monthly rental billed to lessees.

(%) in Lakhs

: . As on 31% As on 31°
O Assets Given on Lease March 2022 | March 2021
Lease Payment received/ receivable for the Year 1,093 773
Minimum Lease Payment receivable within 1 year ) 910 704
Minimum Lease Payment receivable after  year but not later than 5 years 4,718 4,164
Minimum Lease Payment receivable after 5 years Ty 17,405 18,311
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G . (X) in Lakhs
Gross Carrying Accuml‘ﬂa‘tcd Net Carrying Amount | Impairment Revenue Recognized in P/L (CY)
Amount Depreciation Loss
charged to P/L.
9589 2,008 7,580 - 1,093

(iii) Significant leasing arrangements
a. No covenant for contingent rent
b. The company has leased out Set Top Boxes. The Lease period is 8 ycars after which the lessce has option to buy the same at mutually agreed
terminal value. In cases where the lease period is indeterminate there is no specific covenant for termination of the lease.

¢. No restrictive covenants relating to dividend, additional debt and further leasing,

55 Payment to Auditors (accrued) (Excluding Goods and Service Tax (%) in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As on 31% March 2022 As on 31" March 2021

Statutory Audit Fees 8 7

Limited Review Fees 4 4

Other Services 1 1

13 12

56 Certain Balances of Loans & Advances, Trade Receivables, Trade Payables, and other assets & liabilities are subject to confirmation.

57 As per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013, a CSR Committee had been formed by the Company. The funds are utilised in the activities which are
specified in Schedule VII of the Act. The utilisation is done by way of contribution towards various activities.
{a) Average net profit as prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act 2013: Rs 217 lakhs (PY Rs 1331) lakhs. Accordingly amount required to
be spent was Rs 4 lakhs (P Y Rs 27 Lakhs).
(b) Amount spent during the year Rs 5 (PY Rs 27) lakhs on activities of Health Care , Rs 3 ( PY Nil) lakhs on sport Sponsorship.

58 In the apinion of the Board of Directors the current assets, loans and advances shown in the Balance Sheet as on 31" Mar 2022 are considered goad
and fully recoverable, except otherwise stated and provision for all known liabilities has been made in the accounts.

59 Subsequent to outbreak of Coronavirus {COVID-19) and consequential lockdown across the country, the Company has continned to operate and
provide cable services to its customers, which has been declared as an essential service, without disruptions. Based on its review and current indicators
of economic slowdown, there is no significant impact on its financial results, The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes
arising of future economic conditions and impact on its business.

60 Movement of Provision ¥ in Lakhs
] Provision for Churn STB
Particulars Non Current Current
Balance as at 31 March 2021 175 -
Additions * 340 -
Balance as at 31 March 2022 515 -

* Included under Other Expenses in the statement of Profit and Loss.

61 Information under section 186 {4) of the Companics Act 2013
There are no investments or loan given or guaraniee provided or security given by the Company other than the investments stated under Note 7 &
Note 8 in these standalone financial statements, which have been made for the purpose of business.

62 Asscts hypothecated / pledged as sceurity
The carrying amounts of assets hypothecated / pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are :

As at As at
Particulars Refc;‘oNotc 31" March, | 317 March,
) 2022 2021
Current
Financial assets 4,049 3,869
Trade Receivables 13 4,049 3,869
Non-financial assets 119 102
Inventories 11 119 162
Total current assets pledged as security 4,168 3,972
Non-current
Property Plant & Equipment 4 24,979
Investment Property 7,009
Other Non Current Financial Assets 161
Total non-currents assets pledged as security 32,149
Total assets pledged as security 30,316
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63 Related Party Disclosure
List of parties where control Exists
a. Holding Company
+ Siti Networks Limited
b. Fellow Subsidiary Companies
+ Siti Vision Digital Media Private Limited
» Variety Entertainment Private Limited
¢. Subsidiary Company -
* Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Limited
= Indinet Service Private Limited
» Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Lid
d. Entities with Common Control
+ 8iti Darshan Cable Net Co. Private Limited
= Siti Royal Heritage Communications Private Limited
« Siti Singbhum Cable Net Company Private Limited (Company under process of strike off)
¢. Entities in which Directors Interested**
= Calcutta Communication LLP
« Digital Googly
« Victor Mediia Private Limited
« Smart Vinimay Private Limited
= Maxpro Tracon Private Limited
» Kolkata Media Services Private Limited
» Victor Distributors
« SRD Properties Pvt, Ltd.
« Hi Tech Film and Broadcast Academny
*Victor Electro Services
» Axom Communications & Cable Private Limited (upto 16,02.2022)
« Kolkata Entertainment Services LLP
* Moople Animation Pvt Ltd
f. Director/Key Managerial Personnel
* Mr, Suresh Kumar Sethiya
« Mr. Surendra Kumar Agarwala

Whole Time Director
Whole Time Director

* Mr. Sanjay Berry Director (till 30.06.2021)

» Ms. Kavita Anand Kapahi

» Ms. Kavita Anand Kapahi

* Mr Yogesh Sharma

» Mr Sunil Kumar Maheshwari
* Mr. Atul Kumar Singh

» Mr, Laxman Singh Kaira

#* with whom the Company has transactions during the current year and previous year

Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

Independent Director (till 15,11.2021)

" Director (w.e.f. 16,11.2021)
Director (w.e.f, 19.07.2021)
Independent Director{w.e.f, 25.10.2021}

Transactions with related parties. ) in Lakhs
Siti Darshan Cable Net Siti Royal Heritage
Particulars Siti Network Limited Communications Private
Co. (P) Ltd. -
Limited
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21

Expenses paid on behalf of - - - 220 0 0
Loan Given 1,125 ) ) i ) )
Purchase of material &
Services 1,294 1,059 1,331 1,230 - -
Bad Debt Written off - - b 207 - .
Sales of service and
materials 1,009 1,110 - - - -
Sale of Fixed assets 7 2 - - - -
Provision for Doubtful
Debts - - 2 11 11
QOutstanding at the end of
year Dr{Cr) 1,285 651 (76) 11
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) in Lakhs
Siti Vision Digital Media Pvt
Ltd

Transactions with related parties.

Meghbela Infitel Cable &
Broadband Pvt Ltd
FY 21-22 FY 20-21

Particulars Calcutta Communication LLP

FY 21-22 FY20-21° FY 21-22 FY 20-21

Purchase of material &
Services

Sales of service and
materials - -

45

38 - - -

Loan Given 1,693 . : _

Outstanding at the end of

year Dr(Cr) 33 75 2,072 - 20 20

) in Lakhs
Siti Singhbhum Cable Net Co.
(P) Ltd.
FY 21-22

Transactions with related partics.

Siti Maurya Cable Net
Pvt. Ltd.

FY 21-22 FY 20-21

Particulars " Smart Vinimay Private limited

FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 20-21

Expenses paid on behalf of } ) o 13 0 0

Purchasc of material &
Services 2 1 - - - -

Bad Debt Written off’

Sales of service and
materials

Outstanding at the end of
year

45 49 495 540

3) (2) 452 289

(®) in Lakhs
Hi Tech Film and Broadeast
Academy
FY 21-22 FY 20-21

Transactions with related partices.

Victor Distributers

FY 20-21

Indinet Service Pvt Lid
FY 20-21

Particulars

FY 21-22 FY 21-22

Expenses paid on behalf of

24 849 - - - -

Purchase of material &
Services - - -
Sales of service and
materials

Security Deposit
Received{Adjusted) 125

Sale of Fixed Assets -

138

138

925 1,353 - - -

(900) . . - -
1,141 - -

Bad Debt Written off 12

Provision for Doubtful
Debts - - - 12 - -

Outstanding at the end of
year

0

-]

(320) (8) e 12

) in Lakhs

Transactions with related partics.

Particulars

SRD Propertics Pvt. Ltd.

Maxpro Tracon Pvt Ltd

Varicty Entertainment Pyt Ltd

FY 21-22

FY 20-21

FY 21-22

FY 20-21

FY 21-22

FY 20-21

Loans & Advances Given

- 4,812

Purchase of material &
Services

11

Sales of service and
malerials

13

19

Provision for Doubtful
Debts

Baddebt Written off

Outstanding at the end of
year
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Transactions with related partics. (T) in Lakhs
. Axom Communications & Cable Pvt. Victor Mediia Private | Kelkata Media Service Private
Particulars o
Lud. Limitd Limitd

FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY21.22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21

Expenses paid on behalf of

Purchase of material &
Services “ - 28 41 - -

Sales of service and
materials 136 224 - - - -

Bad debt Written off . . 0 - - 1

Provision for Doubtful
Debts - 41 - - - -

Qutstanding at the end of
year 109 341 (18) (31) - . [(0)]

) in Lakhs

Smart Cable & Broadband
Services

Transactions with related parties.

Particulars Kolkata Entertainment Services LLP | Vietor Elcetro Services

FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21

Purchase of material &
Services 16 17 4 3

Sales of service and
materials 34 30 . _ 28

Bad debt Written off’ 5

Qutstanding at the end of
year 3 4 - 0 ()]

Transactions with retated parties. () in Lakhs
Particulars Moople Animation Pyt Lid Digital Googly
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21

Purchase of material &
Services 107 - 2 -

Outstanding at the end of
year . - ol _

Note: The Above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
company and relied upon by the auditors.

h. Remuneration to KMP %) in Lakhs
Particulars FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Surendra Kumar Agarwala 152 127
Suresh Kumar Sethiva 152 127
Atul Kumar Singh 57 54
Total Remuneration 361 308
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 = May 2022

64 Revenue from contracts with customers
(A) Disageregation of revenue

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Pariiculars (%) Lakhs (X) Lakhs
Revenue from operations
Sale of services
Subscription income 24,788 27,958
Advertisement income 6,524 4,503
Carriage income & Marketing Income ) 5,249 4,108
Activation and Set top boxes pairing charges 135 84
Other operating revenue
Sale of iraded goods* 204 1,081
Lease rental charges 540 428
Other networking and management income 1,671 1,819
Rent Income . 703 480
Other Operating Income 643 445

40,456 40,906

The Company has disaggregated the revenue from contracts with customers on the basis of nature of services/goods sold. The Company believes that
the disaggregation of revenue on the basis of nature of services/goods sold has no impact on the nature, amount, timing & uncertainty of revenues

and cash flows.

(B) Contract Balances
The Company classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either a receivable or as unbilled revenue.

Trade receivable and unbilled revenues are presenied net of impairment in the Balance Sheet.

The following table provides information about contract asscis and contract linbilities for the contracts with the customers.

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Particulars (¥) Lakhs () Lakhs
Receivables, which are included in 'Trade and other receivables’ 4,049 3,869
Contract assets (Unbilled Revenue) ’ 322 306
Contract liabilities (Unearned Revenue)} £,227 1,264
5,598 5,439

The contract assels is the Company's rights to consideration in exchange for goods and services that the Company has transferred to a customer.The contract
liabilities primarily relate to the billing recognized in advance where performance obligations are yet to be satisfied.
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65

66

(C) Performance Obligations and Remaining Performance Obligations
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting period and

an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has
not disclosed the remaining performances as the performance obligations relates to contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or less.

Remaining perfonmance obligation estimates are subject 1o change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts,
periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materialized and adjustments for currency.

The Financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the board of directors in their meeting held on 27th May 2022.

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever necessary to miake them comparable with the current years figures.

The ratios for the year ended March, 31 2022 and March, 31 2021 are as follows
. Numerator Denominator As at March,31 Variance in %
Particulars Remarcks
2022 2021
(a) Current Ratio, Sub-total of Current |Net Current Liabilities 0.72 0,76 -5%
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, #  iTotal Debt Share holder's Equity o1 0.19 ~43%5: Repayment of Debts
(c) Debt Service Coverage $Eamings available  {Debt Service 219 0.72 202%} Reduction in principal payment of
Ratio, ## for debt service lpans
(d} Return on Equity Ratio, {PAT Average Sharcholder's 4% 2% 53% Increase in Profit
() Inventory turnover ratio, jCost of Materials Average Inventories .27 0.59 113%;  Conswnption of Materials for
Consumed . Repairs and Maintainance increased
(f) Trade Receivables Net Revenue from  JAverage Trade Receivable 10.33 7.49 38%|Reduction in outstanding balances of]
tumover ratio, Qperations i rade receivables
() Trade payables turnover {Nel Expenses for - | Average Trade Payable 4.27 3.45 4%
ratio, which credit
purchase is generated
(1) Net capital turnover Tolal Income ‘Working Capital NA NA NA|
ratio, .
(i) Net profit ratio, PAT Total Income 4% 2% 60%, Increase in Profit
(j) Retumn on Capital EBIT Average Capital Employed 5% 4% 53% Average Capitzl Emptoyed reduced
employed ) due to reduction in borrowings
(k) Return on investment.
Investment in unquoted Net Gain Book Value of Investinent 19% - NA|
shares
Realised and Investment in Mutual Fund 6% - NA|
Unrealised Gain
Investment in mutual funds {fom Investment for
the invested period

(a) Net Current Liabilities = Total Current Liabilities - Overdraft from Axis Bank
(b Total Debt = total borrowings -+ total lease liabilities
{c) Eamings Availahle for Debt Service = PBT + Finance costs + Depreciation and amortisation expenses + Loss on Sale/ Discard / Write off of Assets(net) -+ Net loss in Fair

value of investments hrough P&L - Profit on sale of Investinent - Profit on sale of fixed assets - Net gain in Fair valve of investments through P&L
Debt Service = Interest on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost + Interest expensc on lease liability + Principal Repayment + Lease Rental & Riglit to Usage Charge

() Net Revenue from Operations = Revenue from Operations + Revenue from Business Support Services

(g) Net Expenses for which credit purchase is generated = Total Expenses - Finance Costs - Employee Benefits Expense - Cost of Materials Consumed - Cost/Purchase of
Goods Sold - Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses - Rates and taxes - Net loss in Fair value of investments through P&L - Loss on Sale / Discard / Write off of
Assets(net) - Provision for Churn STB's - Provision for Expected Credit Loss - Provision for doubiful advances - Rebate and Discount - Bad debts - Corporate Social

Responsibility Expenditure - Exchange fluctuation loss.

(h) Working Capital = Sub Total of Current Assets - Sub Tetal of Current Liabilities. Net working capital is negative.
{j) EBIT = Profit /(Loss) befare tax - Interest on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost - Interest expense on Tease liability
Capital Employed = Total Equity + Total Borrowings + Total Lease Liability + Deferred Tax Liability {Net)

The Code on Social Security,2020 has been enacted by the Indian Parliament, which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident fund
and Gratuity. The effective date from which the changes will be applicable and the corresponding Rules, are yet to be notified. The Company will complete it's
evaluation and will give appropriate impact in the period in which the Code and the corresponding Rules become effective.
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67 Disclosue of Struck off companies

The following table depicts the details of balances outstanding in respect of transactions undertaken with a company struck-off company under

section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Rs in Lakhs
Name of struck off Company Nature of transactions |Balance as at | Balance as at { Relationship with
with struck-off’ 3ist 31st the struck off
Company March,2022 | March,2021 company
RAJIV S0UQ PRIVATE LIMITED - - 0.08 |Customers
MACNEILL MEDIA PVT LTD - - 0.15 [Customers
M/S MELOS MEDIA PYT LTD - - (1.38 |Customers
4AM WORLDWIDE MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED - - 37.59 |Customers
TELEBRANDS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED - - 5,69 |Customers
JAGANATH WEBTECH PRIVATE LIMITED - - 0.20 |Customers

* Qutstanding balances of above mentioned parties arc written off during the financial year 2021-22

68 The Financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and approved by the board of directors in their meeting held on 2¥th May 2022,

69 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever necessary to make them comparable with the current years figures.

For A.K, Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. - 329475E)

- L] 1
A.K Bhalotia
Proprietor

Membership No.-065860

Place - Kolkata
Date - 27.05.2022

For Indian Cable Net Co Ltd
{U92132WB1995PLC075754)

Sur ndra ar Agarwa[a Suresh Kumar Sethiya
le TimeWirector Whole Time Director
-00569816 DIN-00349098

Laxman S

Company Secretary
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Indian Cable Net Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Indian Cable Net Company
Limited(‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as ‘the Group’), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2022, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive [ncome), the Consolidated
Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on
the other financial information of the subsidiaries, except for the effects of the matter described in the
Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the
information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, of the consolidated state of
affaits (consolidated financial position) of the Group as at 31 March 2022, and its consolidated
profit(consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income), its consolidated cash
flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date

Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Group’s Revenue from Operations’ include broadcasters’ share in subscription income from pay
channels, which has correspondingly been presented as an expense which is not in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS-115, ‘Revenue from contract with customers’. Had the Management disclosed the
same on net basis, the Revenue from Operations’ and the ‘Pay Channel, carriage sharing and related cost’
each would have been lower by T 22400 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March 2022 and the profit would
have remained the same as currently reported.

Further, with respect to the above matter, qualifications have been given by other firms of Chartered
Accountants vide their audit reports dated 23 May, 2022 on the financial statements of the subsidiaty
Companies, namely, Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Lirnited and Meghbela Infitel Cable & Braodband
Private Limited and is reproduced by us as under, with the aggregate amount pettaining to such
subsidiaries, as also included in the above paragraph:

The company’s ‘Revenue from Opesations’ includes broadcasters’ share in subscription income from pay
channels, which has correspondingly been presented as an expense which is not in accordance with the
requirements of Ind AS-115, ‘Revenue from contracts w . customers’. Had the management disclosed
the same on net basis, the ‘Revenue from Operations’ and the “‘Carriage sharing, pay channel and related
costs each would have been lower by ¥ 2948 Lakhs for the year ended 31 March 2022, while there would
have been no impact on the net profit/loss for the year ended 31 March 2022.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
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Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute ofPfihaf@r400624%hadobife : 9831499465
India ('ICAT) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audifefil fieaashishbhalotia@yahoo.co.in
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules there under, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms of their
reports referred to in paragraph 16 of the Other Matter paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment and based on the consideration of
the reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information
of the subsidiaries, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

In addition to the matters described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, we have determined the
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addzessed the key audit matter
Provisioning for Expected Credit Loss | We have performed the following procedures for
("ECL") assessment of sufficiency of the provisioning for ECL:
Trade receivables comprise 2 significant
portion of the current financial assets of the s  Obtained the aglng of trade receivables and
Group. As at March 31, 2022 trade discussed the key receivable balances,
receivables aggregate ¥ 5,750 Lakhs (net of considering if any correspondence is available
provision for expected credit losses of ¥ 866 to establish the management’s assessment of
Lakhs). recoverability of such dues.
' ¢ Analysis of the methodology used to determine

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the the provision amount for the current year.
Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) *  Assessing key ratios which include collection
model for measurement and recognition of periods and days outstanding,
impairment loss for financial assets. s Tested subsequent settlement of trade

) . h receivables after the balance sheet date on a
Since the Group has revenue streams which sample basis,

are dissimilar, the management has identified
different classes of trade receivables basis the
customer profile and nature of service
provided or item sold. The management
regularly assesses each class of trade
receivables for recoverability. Provision for
ECL is created by the management
considering the recovery trends noted for the
respective class, adjusted for forward looking
estimates. Additional provision is created for
the receivables specifically identified 4as
doubtful or non-recoverable.

Fstimation of the rates at which provision
for ECL is to be created for each revenue
stream, involve significant degree of
judgment and estimate and is therefore
considered a key audit matter.

Evaluation of uncertain tax positions We obtained details of completed tax assessments and
The Group has material uncertain tax | demands for the year ended March 31, 2022 from
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positons including matters under dispute
which involves significant judgment o
determine the possible outcome of these
disputes.

Refer Norer 1o the Consolidated  Financial
Statements

management. We involved Rhu: (@p40052478, Mobile : 9831499465

cha}ﬂen.ge the management’s undeatnail: sanshidbhdblia@yahoo.co.in
estimating the tax provision and the possible outcome

of the disputes. Our internal experts also considered
legal precedence and other rulings in evaluating
management’s position on these uncertain tax
positions. Additionally, we considered the effect of new

information in respect of uncertain tax positions as at
April 1, 2021 to evaluate whether any change was
required to management’s position on these
uncertamfies.

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Repott thezeon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is tesponsible for the other information. Other information
does not include the consolidated financia) statements and our auditot’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
requited to report that fact. Reporting under this section is not applicable as no other information is
obtained at the date of this auditor’s report.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the consolidated state of affairs, consolidated profit including other comprehensive income,
consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its associates and joint
ventures in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS

specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors/management of the companies

included in the Group and its associates and joint ventures are responsible for maintenance of adequate

accounting records i accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for. ensuting the accuracy aad completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as

aforesaid.

[n preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as 4 going concers, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
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10. The respective Board of Directors of the companies in the group are also respansible for overseeing the
Group'’s financial reporting process.

Auditot’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

11. Our objectives ate to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from matetial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

12. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identfy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for explaining our opinion on whether the holding company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Lvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basts of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conciude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify cur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

» Ewvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the nanderlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

13. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.
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15. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
ate therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s teport unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

16.We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect total
assets of 10,670 Lakhs and net assets of ¥4,176 Lakhs as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of ¥15,165
Lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to ¥34 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated financial statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries,
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion above on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on other legal and regulatory
requirements below, are not modified in respect of the above matters with tespect to our reliance on the
work done by and the reports of the other auditors.

Repott on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

17. As required by section 197(16} of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports of
the other auditors, referred to in paragraph 16, on separate financial statements of the subsidiaries, we
report that the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies covered under the Act have paid
remuneration to their respective directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits
laid down under section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

18. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideraton of the reports of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and other financial information of the subsidiaries, we

report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) we have sought and except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified
Opimon section, obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliel were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors;

c) the consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated

financial statements;

d) except for the effect of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section, , in
our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified
under section 133 of the Act;
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€)

{b)

On the basis of the written representations received from tiehitdQ@3A0OPM 21 Makjle : 9831499465
Company and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the H%i’&i'@g CSﬁW?hQBQl ia@yahoo.co.in
reports of the other statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies covered under the Act,

none of the directors of the Group companies are disqualified as on 31 March 2022 from

being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of

the Holding Company, and its subsidiaty companies, covered under the Act, and the

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure I’;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us

and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial

statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries:

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group as detailed in Note 45 to the consolidated
financial statements.;

The Holding Company and it’s subsidiaries did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March
2021,

there weze no ameounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary companies covered
under the Act, duting the year ended 31 March 2021;

The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have
represented to us/auditors of the subsidiaries that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company or any of such subsidiaties to or in any
other person or entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company or any of such subsidiaries (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

The respective Managements of the Company and its subsidiaries which are companies

-ingorporated in India, whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, have

represented to us/auditors of the subsidiaries that, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, ne funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
received by the Company or any of such subsidiaties from any person or entity, including
foreign entity (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company or any of such subsidiaries shall, directly or indirectly, lend ot
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances performed by us on the Company and on the basis of report of auditors
of its subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India whose fnancial statements
have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (i) of Rule 11(e), as provided
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v) “The company has not declared and paid any dividend during the year.

19, With respect to the matters specified in patagraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies {Auditor’s Report)
Ordet, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARQ”} issued by the Central Goverament in terms of Section 143(11) of
the Act, to be included in the Auditot’s repoxt, according to the information and explanations given to us,
and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and CARO reports issued by the auditors
of its subsidiaties included in the consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting
under CARO is applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARQ
reports.

For A.K.Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 329475E

(A.K. Bhalotia)
Proprietor
Membership No.: 065860
UDIN : 22065860A] TCIG2785

Place: Kolkata
Date : 27 May, 2022
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Annexure [

Independent Auditor’s report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3
of Section 1430f the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act™)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Indian Cable Net Company
Limited (“the Holding Company™) and its subsidiaries, (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group”), as at and for the year ended 31 March 2022, we have audited the internal
financial controls over [inancial reporting (‘IFCoFR’) of the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies, which are companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

2. The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, which are
companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on Internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (“the Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly
and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
companies, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (TCAD) prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of IFCoFR, and the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAL Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and pian and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate IFCoFR were established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the IFCoFR
and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of IFCoFR includes obtaining an understanding of [FCoFR,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the andit evidence obtained by the other auditors
in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the IFCoFR of the Holding Company and its subsidiary

companies, as aforesaid.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

6. A company's IFCoFR is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
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generally accepted accounting principles. A company's IFCoFR include those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statemnents in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

7. Because of the inherent limitations of IFCoFR, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the IFCoFR to future periods are subject to the risk that
the IFCoFR may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

8. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit and consideration of
the reports of the other auditors on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
subsidiary companies, the following material weakness has been identified in the operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary companies, which ate companies covered under the Act as at 31 March 2022:

The internal financial controls over preparation of financial statements with respect to presentation and
disclosure of Revenue from operations’ in accordance with the requirement of Ind AS 115 Revenue from
contracts with customers’, were not operating effectively which has resulted in a material misstatement in
the amounts recognised as ‘Revenue from operations’ and “Carriage shating, pay channel and related costs’
including the relevant disclosures in the consolidated financial statements, while there is no impact on the
net profit for the yvear ended 31 March 2022,

9. A ‘material weakness’ is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal financial control with
reference to financial statements, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of
the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

10. In our opinion and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the subsidiary companies, the Holding Company, and its
subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements as at 31 March 2022, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the respective company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI,
and except for the effects of the material weakness described above on the achievement of the objectives
of the control criteria, such internal financial controls with refetence to financial statements were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2022. '

11. The impact of material weakness identified and reported above has been considered in determining the
nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in the audit of the financial statements of the Holding
Compaay and its subsidiary companies, which are companies covered under the Act as at and for the year
ended 31 March 2022, and the material weakness as mentioned in paragraph 8 above, has affected our
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group and we have issued a qualified opinion on
the consolidated financial statements.
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Other Mattets

12. We did not audit the IFCoFR in so far as it relates to two subsidiary companies, which are companies
covered under the Act, whose financial statements reflect total assets of ¥10,670 Lakhs and net assets of
74,176 Lakhs as at 31 March 2022, total revenues of ¥15,165 Lakhs and net cash inflows amounting to
T34 Lakhs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The
IFCOER in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies, have been audited by other auditors whose
reports have been furnished to us by the management and our report on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the [FCoFR for the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, as aforesaid, under
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such subsidiacy companies, is based solely on the
reports of the auditors of such companies. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter with
respect to our reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the other auditors.

For A. K, Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 329475E

(A. K. Bhalotia)
Proprietor
Membership No.: 065860
UDIN: 22065860AJTCIG2785

Place: Kolkata
Date : 27 May, 2022




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022
Rs in Lakhs
Notes March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
A. Assets
1. Non-current Asseis
(&) Property, Plant and Equipment 4 25,859 33,359
(b) Capital work-in-progress 4 4,201 2,803
{c) Investinent Property 5 7.009 5498
(d} Goodwill & 2,160 2,107
{e) Other Intangible Asscts [ 4430 5,347
{f) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 7 - 844
(ii) Loans 8 5,937 4,812
(iii) Otler Financial Asscls 9 580 546
(f) Defermed Tax Asset (net) 10 375 130
(g) Other non-current Assets 11 547 712
Sub-total of Non-current Assets 35,098 57,157
2. Current Assets
() Inventories 12 156 150
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Investments 13 1,149 -
(ii) Trade Receivables 14 5,750 4,600
(ti) Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 1,470 4,913
(iii) Bank Balances other (ii) above 16 313 103
(v) Other Financial Assets 17 794 939
{c} Current Tax Assets 18 1,401 1,181
{d) Other Current Assets 19 934 1,240
Sub-total of Current Assets 11,967 13,125
Totzal Assets (7,065 70,283
B. Equity and Liabilities
Equity
() Equity Share Capital 20 8,640 8,640
(b) Other Equity 21 36,053 34,822
(c) Non-controlling Interests 1,109 1,342
Sub-total - Equity 45,302 44,804
Liabilities
1. Non-current liabilities
(n) Financial Liabilities
(i) Long-term Borrowings 22 508 3,500
(in)} Lease Liability 34 -
(ii) Other Financinl Liabilities 23 435 662
{b) Provisions 24 1,116 . 490
(c) Other Non-current Liabilities 5 207 179
Sub-total - Non-carrent Linbilities 2,285 4,831
2, Current Liabilities
() Financial Linbilities
(i) Bomrowings 26 5,001 1,765
(ia) Lense Liability 50
(ii) Trade Payables 27
« Total Qutstanding dues of creditors for micro
enterprises and small enlerprises 24 11
- Total Qutstanding dues of creditors- others 9,967 10,748
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 28 313 4,710
(b) Other Current Liabilities 29 3494 3,382
(c) Provisions 30 39 3
Sub-total of Current Liabilitics 18,978 20,648
Total Equity and Liabilities 67,065 70,283
Summery of significant accounting policics 3
The accompanying notes are nn integral part of these financial statements.
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

For A.K. Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. - 329475E)

For Indian Cable Net Co Lit
(U92132WBI1995PLCO7, ]

W

AK Bhalotia mar Agarwala Suresh Kumar Sethiyva

Proprictor ole Time Director Whole Time Director

Membership No.-065860 IN-00569816 DIN-00342098 .

Place - Kolkata LaxmL‘gggh‘ﬁT?_' Atul KumarSikhgh
CFO

Date - 27,05.2022

ompany Secretary




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Consolidated Statement.of Profit and Loss for the period ended March 31, 2022
Rs in Lakhs
Notes March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
I Revenue
Revenue from Operations 31 54,149 52,381
QOther Income 32 1,512 1,755
Total Revenue 55,661 54,136
IT Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 33 142 53
Cost/Purchase of Goods Sold ' 34 77 791
Carriage Sharing, Pay channel and related costs 3s 35,547 34,465
Employee Benefits Expense 36 2,506 2,208
Finance Costs 37 547 1,016
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 38 8,696 8,915
Other Expenses 39 6,567 5,760
Total Expenses 54,082 53,208
III Profit /(Loss) before exceptional items 1,579 928
Exceptional Items -
1V Profit /(Loss) before tax 1,579 928
Tax Expenses 605 9
(a) Current Tax
For Cutrent Year 832 534
For Earlier Year 17 103
(b) Deferred Tax (245) (629)
vV  Profit /{Loss) for the year 974 919
Other Comprehensive Income 40 23 18
VI Total Comprehensive Income for the year 997 937
VII Profit attributable to :
Owners of the Company 1,208 899
Non Controlling Interest (233) 19
Other Comprehensive Income attributable to:
Owners of the Company 23 18
Non Controlling Interest Rs113(C Y), Rs 5568 (P Y) 0 ()]
VIIT Profit/(Loss) to Equity Share Holders 997 937
Earnings Per Share 41
Basic 1.40 1.04
Diluted 1.40 1.04
Summary of significant accounting policies 3
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
This js the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date
For A K. Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants For Indian Cable Net CoXtd
(Firm Registration No. - 329475E) 92132WB1995PLC075(54)
AK Bhalotia Sprendra Kumar Agarwala Suresh Kumar Sethiya
Proprictor hole Time Director Whole Time Director
Membership No.-065860 DIN-00569816 . DIN-00349098
e N
Place - Kolkata Laxman SingliKaira Atul Kdmbr Singh

Date - 27.05.2022 Company Secretary CFO




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for year ended 31" March 2022

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year

Rsin Lakhs
PARTICULARS 31 March 2022 31" Mnrch 2021
A. Cash Flow (rom Operating Activities:
Net Profit hefore iaxation, exceptional item & prior period items 1,579 928
Adjustment for ;-
Depreciation 8,696 8,915
Loss on sate/disposal/decapitalisetion of Fixed Assets 606 13
Loss /(Prafit) on sale of lavesiments {182) -
Bad Debts written off (Net of Provisions) 0 1
Provision for Retirement Benefit 30 27
Provision for STBs Chum 627 68
Liability no longer required written back ( Net } (331) (821
Unrealised loss(gain) on Investment (24) 214
Provision for Expected for Credit Loss - 228 767
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Gain/(Loss) [4)] 7
Interest Paid & Borrowing cost 547 1,016
Interest on Fixed Deposit/ IT Refund / Others (607) 535
Operaling profil before working capital changes 11,169 11,670
Change in working capital
Increasef(Decrease) in Trade payables (5034 (1,604}
Increase/(Decrease) in ather current liabilities ne 158
Increase/(Decrease) in other non current liabilities 28 {460)
Increasef(Decrease) in other current financial labilities (1,195) {965)
Increase/(Decrease) in other non current financial liabilities {209) 69
Decrease/ { Incresse) in Trade receivable (1,311 3,077
Decreasef ( Increase) in Inventories {6) {81)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non Current Financial Assets {127)
Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Financial Assets 145 {429)
Decrease/ ( Increase) in other custent assels 306 527
Decreased { Increase) in other non- current assets 23) 47
Cash Generation from Operating Activities before exceptional item 8,3%4 12,028
Exceptional ltem -
Cash Generation from Operating Activities after exceptional ilem 8,394 12,028
Income Tax Paid ( including TDS) {833) (207)
Net Cash Generation from operating Activities 7,562 11,321
B. Cash flow From Invesling Activitics:
Purchase of Fixed Assets/ CWIP / Capital Advances (6,921) (2.942)
Sale of Fixed Assets/Decagitalisation 16 9
Investment in Mutual Fund (3,604) -
Proceeds from sale of Equity Instruments 1,000 -
Proceeds from disposal of Mutwal Fund 2,503 -
Loan Given to Holding Company {1,300) -
Loan Repaid by Holding Company 175 -
Interest 607 (535)
Investment in FD/Term Deposit/Leans (117) (4,888)
Net Cash Generation from Investing Activities {7,641} (8,356)
C- Cash flow From Financing Activitics:
Interest Paid on Borrowings (547} (1,016}
Borrowirgs Taken / (Repayment) net of repaytments ** (2,750} (9,385}
Principal Repayment of lease liability (67) (52}
Net Cash Generalion from Financing Activities (3,363) (10,453)
Net Increasef{decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (3,443) {6,988)
Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year 4,913 11,901
1,470 4,913

Cash & Cash Equivalent include

As on 31" March 22

As on 31% March 21

Cash & Cash Equivalent Reported

Cash Balance 764 1,468
Bank Balance 599 535
Deposits - Free Maturity within 3 months 107 2,910

1,470 4,913

Notes; Previous years' figures are regrouped wherever necessary.
Cash Flow Statement referred in our repert of even date.

For A K. Bhatotia & Co.

Whole Time Director

Proprieior
DIN-00569816

Membership No.-065860 .

Mace - Kolkata

Date - 27.05,2022 Company Secretary

Laxman Shgh Ka?m/&

For Indian Cable Nel Co

Chartered Accountants (U92132WB1995PLCO757k4)
{Firm Registration M. - 329475E) Q.

s z
A.K Bhalotia rendraJKumar Agarwala

Suresh Kumar Sethiya

Whole Time Dircetor
DIN-00345098




Indian Cable Net Company Limited

Statement of Change in Equity for the vear ended 31% March 2022

A. Equity Share Capital

Rsin Lakhs

Changes in equity
e share capital Balance at 31st
Balance at 1st April'2021 during the current {March 2022
year
8,540 - 8,640
Rs in Lakhs
Changes in equity
" share capital Balance nt 31st
Bal y
alance at st April'2020 during the current [Mareh 2021
YEear
8,640 - 8,640

B. Other Equity

Rs in Lakhs
Reserves and Surplus Non Controlling Taotal
Capital Reserve Securities Retained
Premium Earnings
Balance at 15¢ April'2021 - 18,958 15,854 1,342 36,164
Profit for the year - - 1,208 (233) 974
Other Compreliensive Income for - - 23 - 23
the year
Total Comprehensive Income for - - 1,231 (233) 9297
the current year
Dividends - . - -
Transter to retained eamings - - - -
Any other change (to be specified) - - - -
Balance at 31st March 2022 - 18,968 17,085 1,109 37,162
Reserves and Surplus Non Controlling Total
Capital Reserve Securities Retained
Premium Earnings
- 18,968 14,937 1,323 35,228
Balance at 13t April'2020
Profit for the year - - 899 19.00 918
Other Comprehensive Income for - - 18 18
1he year
Total Comprehensive Income for - - 918 19 937
the current year
Dividends - - - -
Transfer to retained eamings - - - -
Any other change (to be specified} - - - -
- 18,968 15,854 1,342 36,164
Balance at 31st March 2021

Statement in change in Equity referred in our report of even date.

For A.K. Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Registration No, - 329475E)

M

AKX Bhalotia
Proprietor
Membership No.-065860

Place - Kolkata
Date - 27.05.2022

-00569816

le Time Director

A

[ axmlﬁég"rihﬁra

For Indian Cable Net Co Lt /—7

{U92132WBI995PLCO7574)

Sur¢ndra I&\ar Agarwala

Suresh Kumar Sethiya
Whole Time Director
DIN-00349098

Atul Kumar
CF.O




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2022

1 Corporate Information

Indian Cable Net Company Limited ( hereinafter referred to as "the company" or "ICNCL" or the "the Holding Company”
or " the Parent Company" ) together with its Subsidiaries Indinet Service Private Limited , Siti Maurya Cable Net Private -
Limited and Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pwvt Ltd, collectively referred to as a “the Group” are engaged in
distribution of television channels through digital cable distribution network, primary internet (Broadband) and allied
services. The company is an Unlisted Public Limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has a registered
office at Kolkata in the state of West Bengal, India.

2 Basis of Preparation

(a)

(b)

©

@

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS ) as presctibed by
Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’} read with relevant rules of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 read with companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules as amended from time to

time.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and

associate (collectively referred to as "The Group").

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, financial statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiaries have been
combined on a line by line basis by adding the book values of the like items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses after
eliminating intra~group balances / transactions and unrealised profits in full. The amount shown in respect of reserves
comprise the amount of the relevant reserves as per the balance sheet of the Parent Company and its share in the post
acquisition increase in the relevant reserves of the consolidated entities.

The excess/deficit of cost to the Parent Company of its investment over its portion of net worth in the consolidated entities

at the respective dates on which the investment in such entities was made is recognised in the financial statements as
goodwill/capital reserve. The Parent Company's portion of net worth in such entities is determined on the basis of book

* value of assets and liabilities as per the financial statements of the entities as on the date of investment and if not available,

the financial statements for the immediately preceding period adjusted for the effects of significant changes.

Non- controlling Interest in subsidiaries represents the minority shareholders proportionate share of the net assets and net
income.

Non -controlling interest in net profit of consolidated subsidiaries for year has been identified and adjusted against the
income in order to arrive at the net income attributable to the shareholders of the company. Their share of net assets has

'been identified and presented in the consolidated balance sheet separately. Where accumulated losses attributable to the

minorities are in excess of their equity, in the absence of the contractual obligation on the minorities, the same have been
attributed to the shareholder of the Holding Company.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis, except for following :
a) Financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that is measured at Fair value/ Amortised cost;

b) Non-current assets held for sale — measured at the lower of the carrying amounts and fair value less cost to sell;
¢) Defined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value;

Functional and Presentation Currency
The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Group’s functional currency. All

financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest Jakhs as per the requirements of Schedule III,
unless otherwise stated.




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2022
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of financial statements are consistent with those of previous year, unless
otherwise mentioned, and are explained below-

3 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

Use of estimates and Critical accounting judgements

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and lfabilities on the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of Income and Expenses during the period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in current
or future periods. The most significant techniques for estimation are described in the accounting policies below. Critical
accounting judgments and the key sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying the Group’s accounting policies arise in
relation to the following and also in relation to other accounting policies as stated elsewhere:

(i) Property, Plant and Equipment: Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost /deemed less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses. Leasehold Land is amortised over the period of useful life.Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

(ii) Intangible Asset: Network Assets, Software and VC Cards are included in the Balance sheet as an Intangible asset
where they are clearly linked to long term economic benefits of the Group. In this case they are measured initially at
purchase cost and then amortised on a straight-fine basis over their estimated useful lives. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination (Goodwill) are reported at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

(iif) Revenue Recognition: The Carriage, Marketing and Placement income is recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss on the basis of contract with the broadcasters. Since this is a continuing service , therefore in few cases the Income is
recognised following the trend of past basis in the absence of agreement pending renewal.

(iv) Claims, Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
The Group has ongoing litigations with various regulatory authorities and third parties, Where an outflow of funds is

believed to be probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be made based on management’s
assessment of specific circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice, management provides for its best
estimate of the liability. Such accruals are by nature complex and can take number of years to resolve and can involve
estimation uncertainty. Information about such litigations is provided in notes to the financial statements.

(v) _Uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:
The Group has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying

amounts of receivables, unbilled revenues and investment in subsidiaries. In developing the assumptions relating to the
possible future uncertainties in the global economic conditions because of this pandemic, the Group, as at the date of
approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information including credit reports and
related information, economic forecasts. The Group has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used and based
on current estimates expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered.The impact of COVID-19 on the Group's
financial statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Recognition and Measurement

Property, Plant and Equipment is recognised at cost less accumulated depreciation or impairment losses if any, incurred to
bring the asset to the present condition and location. The cost of fixed assets comprises its purchase price net of any trade
discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the tax
authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use and interest on borrowings
attributable to acquisition of qualifying fixed assets up to the date the asset is ready for its intended use.

The cost of a self-constructed item of property, plant and equipment comprises the cost of materials, direct labour and any
other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to its intended working condition and esti costs of dismantling,

removing and restoring the site on which it is located, wherever applicable. P

e
volkata of
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31* March 2022

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

The items of spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments that satisfy the definition and recognition criteria of
Property , Plant and Equipment is classified under Capital work in progress. Capital Work in progress comprises of the cost
of fixed assets that are not put to use at the reporting date.

Set top boxes are treated as part of Capital Work In Progress till at the end of the month of activation, afier which the same
are depreciated.

(ii) Depreciation on Tangible Assets
Depreciation on tangible assets is provided on straight line method over the useful lives of assets estimated by the
Management. Depreciation for assets purchased / sold during the period is proportionately charged. Leaschold land is
amortized over the effective period of lease. The details of estimated life for each category of asset are as follows:

Estimated

Asset nseful life
based on SLM

Buildings 60 years
Computers and Data Processing Equipment 3 years
Plant and Machinery 8/ 15 years
Sct Top Boxes 8 years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Studio Equipments 13 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Softwares which are an integral part of Property, Plant and Equipment 6 years

(iii) Disposal of Assets
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and

is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(iv) Reclassification to Investment Property
‘When the use of a property changes from owner-occupied to investment property, the property is reclassified as investment

property at its carrying amount on the date of reclassification.

(¢) Intangible Assets

Goodwill
Goodwill acquired on business combination is measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,

intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Other Intangible Asset
Other Intangible Assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognistion,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, il any.

Estimated useful life based on

Asset SLM
Network Assets 10 years
Software and VC Cards 6 years

(d) Investment Property
Investment property is property held either to earn rental income or for capital appreciation or for both, but not for sale in

the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes. Upon
initial recognition, an investment property is measured at cost. Subsequent to initial rgecgnition, inyestment property is
measured at cost less accumulated d iat] -
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The management believes a pericd of 60 years as representing the best estimate of the period over which investment
properties (which are quite similar) are expected to be used. Accordingly, the Group depreciates investment properties over
a period of 60 years on a straight-line basis. .

Investment properties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn
from the use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The net difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss in the period of derecognition,

Though the Group meéasures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on evaluation performed by an accredited external independent
valuer. The Group has obtained valuation report for the Fair Valuation of the same.

Investment in equity instruments
The Group measures its equity investments at fair value through Profit and Loss account.

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale and discontinued operations

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable. They are measured at
the lower of the carrying amount and the fair value less cost to sell.

An impairment loss is recognized for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less
costs to sell. A gain is recognized for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell of an asset (or disposal group),
but not in excess of any cumulative impairment loss previously recognized. A gain or loss not previously recognized by the
date of the sale of the non-current asset (or disposal group) is recognized at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortized while they are
classified as held for sale, Non-current assets {or disposal group) classified as held for sale are presented separately in the
balance sheet. Any profit or loss arising from the sale or remeasurement of discontinued operations is presented as part of a
single line item in statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of Assets

(i) Financial Assets
For the purpose of computation of expected credit loss, the Group has analysed the trend of provisions for doubtful
debts created in earlier years and has also considered the fact that the Group has revenue from DAS customers which
has been booked as per prepaid model of billing. The expected credit loss has been computed on basis of
recoverability (after analysing each head separately) for DAS customers. Further, the Group has analysed expected
credit loss separately for carriage revenue customer (including Marketing & Placement Income customers) and other
than carriage revenue customer primarily because the characteristics and historical losses trend was different in these

two streams.

(i) Non-Financial Assets

The Carrying amount of the fixed assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard-36 on “Impairment of Assets” prescribed by the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) rules, as
amended from time to time, to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. Impairment test is performed
for an individual asset, unless asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent. Otherwise the assets are
tested for Cash Generating Units (CGUs). An Impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss if the
assets or CGU's carrying amount exceeds the greater of Fair value less cost or Value in use. Reversal of Impairment
are recognised (except Goodwill) through Statement of Profit and Loss except those routed through reserves.

(h) Leases

Where the Group is a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are

classified as operating leases. Assets subject to operating leases are included in Property, Plant and Equipment. Lease
income on an operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss o thly rental basis, wherever

applicable over the lease term.
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Where the Group is @ lessee

The Group’s lease asset classes primarily congist of leases for premises. The Group assesses whether a contract
contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether: (1)} the contract involves the vse of an
identified asset, (2) the Group has right to receive substantial economic benefits from. use of the asset throughout the
period of the lease and (3) the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset throughout the period of use. At the
date of commencement of the lease, the Group recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”} and a correspending lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Group recognizes the lease payments
as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. Certain lease arrangements include the
options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities include
these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised ROU assets are initially recognized at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the
commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently
measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from the
commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.
ROU assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the
fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not
generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. The lease liability is initially measured at
amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of
domicile of the leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Group changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option, Lease
liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified
as financing cash flows.

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease being evaluated or for a
portfolio of leases with similar characteristics.

Inventories
Inventories are valued as follows- .
Stock in trade & Stores and spares valued at cost on weighted average method or at net realisable value whichever is fower.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised on the basis of approved contracts regarding the transfer of goods or services to a customer for an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
Revente is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable taking into account the amount of discounts,
rebates, outgoing taxes on sales of goods or services

Subscription Income from Cable Service
Subscription Income from Cable Service (net of applicable taxes and duties) are recognized on accrual basis from the date
of commencement of supply at the signal injection point(s) of the customers as per schedule of rates.
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(3]

)

(m)

Income From Activation Of Services

The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 (revised) and accordingly these financial statements are prepared in accordance with
recognition and measurement principals laid down in Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™. In pursuance
of the same, Income from activation of digital cable services is recognised as revenue over the initial contract period.

Carriage. Marketing & Placement Income
Carriage, Marketing and Placement Income is recognized on accrual basis over the terms of related agreement/ negotiations

provided that there is no significant uncertainty regarding the realisable amount of consideration.

Other Services
i) Income from insertion of advertisements is recognized on accrual basis from the date(s) of insertion of advertisements
based on the terms specified in the release orders.
ii) Income from rendering technical services is recognized on accrual basis.
iii)Income from fiber leasing is recognized on accrual basis as per terms of the respective contracts.

Lease Income
Lease income from supply of set top boxes is recongnised on accrual basis as per terms of agreement of lease.
Rental Income from Investment Property is recognised as per the respective lease agreements.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when no significant uncertainties exist regarding the amount of consideration that
will be derived and risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the
goods. The Group collects Goods and Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the government and, therefore, these are not
economic benefits flowing to the Group. Hence, they are excluded from revenue. Revenue from High sea Sales are being
recognised on transfer of title of goods to the customers.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing Costs are the interest or the other cost which the entity incuts in connection with the borrowing of the funds.

These include interest expense calculated using the Effective interest method as per Ind AS 109. Borrowing cost which are
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a "Qualifying Asset" are included in the cost of the
asset when it is probable that they will result in the future economic benefit to the entity and it's cost can be measured

reliably.

Foreign Currency Transaction
Transaction in foreign currency is recorded at the rate of exchange prevailing on the transaction date (s). Transaction
remaining unsettled, is translated at the rate prevailing at the end of the financial year. The exchange rate difference arising

there-from are adjusted in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Cash Flow Hedge
A Cash Flow Hedge is used when an entity is looking to eliminate or reduce the exposure that arises from changes in the

cash flows of a financial asset or fiability (or other eligible exposure) due to changes in a particular risk. The accounting of
derivative instruments is made on commitment date rather than on settlement date .The Cash flow hedge is marked to
market on the reporting date and the Cash flow hedge reserve is shown under Other Equity. The effective portion of Cash
flow hedge is transferred to Other Comprehensive Income and the inefTective portion is transferred to Statement of Profit

and L.oss account.
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INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31% March 2022

(n) Financial Instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

M

(i)

(iii)

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value. The transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at fair value through Profit or Loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value measured on
initial recognition of financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through Profit and Loss are immediately recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts fiture
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Compound Financial Instruments E

Separation of instrument into its lability and Equity component is made at the time of Initial recognition. The fair
value of liability component establishes its initial carrying amount which is then deducted from the fair value of the
instrument as a whole to arrive at the residual amount being recognised as the equity component. The fair value of the
liability component at the initial recognition is the Present value of the contractual stream of future cash flow
discounted at the market rate of Interest that would have been applied to the instrument of comparable credit quality
with substantially the same cash flow.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial Assets

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and
the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets al fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. For trade and other
payables maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the
short maturity of these instruments.

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities
The group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the groups’s obligatigns are discharged, cancelled or

they expire.
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(iv) Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and Habilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
counterparty.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. Payments made to state managed
retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined contribution schemes where the Groups obligations under
the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme. For defined benefit
retirement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial
valuation being carried out at each balance sheet date. Re-measurement gains and losses of the net defined benefit liability/
(asset) are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. The service cost, net interest on the net defined benefit
liability/ (asset) is treated as a net expense within employment costs. Past service cost is recognised as an expense when the
plan amendment or curtailment occurs or when any related restructuring costs or termination benefits are recognised,
whichever is earlier. The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the present value of the
defined-benefit obligation as reduced by the fair value plan assets.

Taxation

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the reporting period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
othér years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the assct is
realised based on the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, e-wallet balance, deposits held at call with banks and other short term

deposits including the Bank Overdrafi.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

(i) General
Provisions are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a

result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits which can
be reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the balance sheet date. When appropriate, provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an entity’s actions where:
(a) by an established pattern of past practicé, published policies or a sufficiently specific current statement, the entity has
indicated to other parties that it will accept certain responsibilities; and

(b} as aresult, the entity has created a valid expectation on the part of those other rfies that it will discharge those

responsibilities.
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When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third
party, a receivable is recognised as an asset il it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount
of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(ii) Contingent Liabilities .
A disclosure for contingent liabilities is made where there is a possible obligation or a present obligation that may
probably not require an outflow of resources. When there is a possible or a present cbligation where the likelihood of
outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

(s) Earnings Per Share |

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing profit or loss attributable to equity sharcholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The group did not have any potentially dilutive
securities in any of the periods presented. .

(t) Segment Reporting
The group is a Multi System Operator providing Cable Television Network Services, Broadband Services and Other
Related services which is considered ds the only reportable segment. The groups operations are based in India.
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INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Noics to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31_* March 2022

Note 5 : INVESTMENT PROPERTY Rs in Lalkhs

INVESTMENT
PARTICULARS PROPERTY

Year ended 31 March 2021

Gross Carrying Amount a$ on 01 April 2020 6,877

Additions -

Transfer {rom Property, plant & equipment -

ClosingGross Carrying Amount 6,877

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

Opening Accumulated Amortisation 270
Additions 109
Transfer from Property, plant & equipment -
Closing Accumulated Amortisation and Impairment -379
IClosing Net Carrying Amount as on 31 March 2021 6,498

Year ended 31 March 2022

Gross Carrying Amount as on 01 April 2021 6,877
Additions -

Transfer from Property, plant & equipment 661
Closing Gross Carrying Amount 7,538

Accurhulated amortisation and impairment

Opening Accumulated Amortisation 379

Additions 109

Transfer from Property, plant & equipment 42

Closing Accumnlated Amortisation and Impairment 529

Closing Net Carrying Amount as on 31 March 22 7,009

Notes:

1. Information regarding income and expenditure of Investment Property Rs in Lakhs
. For the year For the ycar

Particulars ended ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Rental income derived from investment properties 679 4506

Direct operating expenses that Generated rental income 380 295

Direct operating expenses that did not Generated rental income 291 267

2. The management has determined that the investment property consists of Building - based on the nature,
characteristics and risks of each property. The Company’s investment properties consist of a portion of its building
situated at Kolkata on the basis of present/ intended use. :

3. Refer note no. 63 for information on investment property pledged as securities by the Company.

4.The Fuir Valuation of Tnvestment Property 2s on 31st March 2022 was Rs 18694 lakhs (P Y Rs 16045 lakhs) as
assessed by independent valuer.
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31™ March 2022

Note 6 : GOODWILL & OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS Rs in Lakhs
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASEETS
PARTICULARS GoopwiLL | PISTRIBUTION Customer g%ﬁk
NETWORK |VC CARDS] Acquisition | SOFTWARE | LICENCES
ASSETS Cost INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Year ended 31 March 2021
Gross Carrying Amount as at 01 April 2020 4,213 15,371 3,550 823 32 19,775
Additions - - 8 - 250 - 258
Disposal - - {15) - (644) - {659)
ClosingGross Carrying Amount 4,213 15,371 3,543 - 429 32 19,374
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 2,107 9,222 2,724 574 6 12,526
Addition - 1,537 332 - 118 2 1,989
Disposal - - (14) - (475) 0 (489)
Clnsing Accumulated Depreciation 2,107 10,760 3042 - 217 7 14,026
Clnsing Net Carging Amount 2,107 4611 501 - 211 24 5347
Year ended 31 March 2022
Gross Carrying Amount as at 0I April 2021
Opening Gross Cairying Amount 4,213 15,371 3,543 - 429 32 19,374
Additions 52 - 0 942 262 B 1,205
Disposal - - (718) - - - (718)
Closing Gross Carzing Amount 4,266 15,371 2,826 942 691 32 19,862
Accumulated Depreciation
Opening Accumulated Depreciation 2,106 10,760 3,042 - 217 7 14,026
Additions - 1,537 288 159 125 2 2,110
Disposal - - {706} - - - (706)
Clusing Accumulated Depreciation 2,106 12,297 2,624 159 342 9 15,430
Closing Net Carrying Amount 2,160 3,074 202 784 349 23 4,430
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Non-current investments (Trade, unquoted)

Long term investments

(Valued at cost uniess stated otherwise)

Investment in cquity instruments -others (Valued at FVTPL)
Nil {PY 125000 Nos) of Equity Share of Axom Communications
& Cable Pvt Ltd { FV T 10/-)

(During the current year the company has sold its equity stake in Axom Cable and Communication Private Limited. }

Loans
Loan to Related Parties :
i) Siti Network Ltd, Holding Company
ii} Variety Entertainment Pvt Ltd, Fellow Subsidiary

The Company under an agreement has extended the existing loan to Variety Entertainment Pvt Ltd from 2 years to 5 years on
the terms and conditions set forth in the said agrecment.

Other Non Current Financial Assets
Securily deposits - Unsecured, considered good
Margin money deposit {pledged) with statutory authorities

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Deferred tax liability

Fixed assets: Impact of difference between tax depreciation and
depreciation/ amortization charged for the financial reparting
Other timing differences

Gross deferved tax Liability

Deferred tax asset
Impact of expenditure charged to the statement of profit and loss
in the current year but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis

Impact of Unabsorbed depreciation /carried forward losses
Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Other disallowances

Graoss deferred tax asset

Net deferred tax asset! (linbilitics)

Others- Non Current Assets
Prepaid Expenses

Capital Advances

Balances with Statutory Authority

Inventorics
Stores and spares

Current investments (Non trade, quoted)

Investment At Fair Value Through Profit Or Loss

Investment in Mutual Funds No of Units
Tata Arbitrage Fund Growth Regular 26,18,698
Tata Money Market Fund Regular Plan Growth 13,490
Kotak Equity Arbitrage Fund Growth Regular 10,98,681

Rs in Lakhs

March 31,2022 Maorch 31, 2021
- 844
- 844
1,125
4,812 4,812
5937 4,812
127 114
453 431
580 546
68 729
6 118
74 847
79 67
152
174 823
45 85
449 977
375 130
47 6l
56 244
444 407
547 712
136 150
156 150
306 -
511 -
332

1149
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Rs in Lakhs

March 31,2022  Mareh 31, 2021

Unsecured, considered good (Incledes ¥ 401 lakhs (PY T 335 5,750 4,600
lakhs) receivable from entities in which director is partner,
member or director)
Unsegured, considered doublful (Includes T nil lakhs (PY ¥ 160 866 3,526
laklis) receivable from entities in which director is parner,
member or director}

6,615 8,126
Less: Provision for Expected Credit Loss 866 3,526

5,750 4,600
Trade Receivables ageing schedule for the year ended March,31 2022 is as follows:

QOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment#
Less than 6 | 6 months-1
Particulars months year 01-02 years 02-03 years | More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Trade receivables — considered good 2,871 1,215 199 152 320 4,758
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 94 243 84 165 281 866
{iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good 442 549 - - - 991
{v) Disputed Trade Reccivables — which have signilicant increase
in credit risk - - - - - -
{vi) Dispuied Trade Receivables —~ credit impaired* - - - - 0 0
Total 3,407 2,008 283 316 601 6,615
Less : Allowance for Credit Loss 866
Total Trade Receivables as on 315t March,2022 5,750
*Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired amounts to Rs 0.34 Lakhs
Trade Reccivables ageing schedule for the year ended March, 31 2021 is as follows:
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment#
Less than 6 | 6 months-1
Particulars months year 01-02 years 02-03 years  |More than 3 years Total
(i) Undisputed - Trade receivables — considered good 2,396 386 794 821 180 4,576
(ii} Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant
increase in credit risk - - - - - -
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 596 334 567 782 1,064 3,343
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables— considered good 10 12 1 1 - 23
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables — which have significant increase
in credit risk - - - - - -
(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired 39 37 63 2 43 184
Total 3.041 768 1,424 1,606 1,286 8,126
Less ; Allowance for Credit Loss 3,526
4,600

Tota! Trade Receivables as on 31st March,2021

Star India Pvt. Ltd., a broadeasting customer of the group has disputed the Incentive invoices of the group w.e.f. Feb202] totaling to Rs.1063 lakhs (includes Rs 72 Lakhs
unbilled) against bills raised on the alleged ground of violation of the Incentive Agreement and has withheld the payment of incentive payments to the company. Being
apgrieved, the companies in the group has filed a petition before the TDSAT against Star India Pvi. Ltd. In an interim relief, TDSAT has ordered withholding part payment to
Star against their dues on account of "Pay Channel cost” towards incentive payments to the group. TDSAT has also prima facie upheld the contention of the group. However, the
outcome of the dispute is dependent on the final Order of TDSAT. The group is of the view that no provision is required in the books in respect of the Incentive receivable by the

group and accordingly has not made any provision in it's accounts.

Cash and bank balances
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand
(Includes Cheque In Hand Rs 606 Lokh {CY ) Ra 1297 Lekh (PY}) and wallet
balance/POS Balance Rs K2 Lakh (CY) and Rs 106 Lakh (PY))

In current accounts
In deposit account (with maturity upto three months)

Other Bank Balances
In deposit account (with maturity upto twelve months)*

Other Current Financial Asscts
Interest accrued and nat due
Unbilled revenue

Rs in Lakhs
764 1,468
599 535
107 2,910
_h‘ﬂﬂ 4,913
313 103
313 103
393 404
401 535
794 939
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Rs in Inkhs

Current Tax Asscts\Liabilitics (net) March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Current tax linbilities ;
Provision for tax 2,399 1,543
Current tax assets ’
Advance tax 3,800 2,724
1,401 1,181
Other current assets
Advance to Vendors 129 307
Advance to Related Parties 33 73
Balances with statutory authorities 300 365
Prepaid Expenses 472 495
934 1,240
Share capital
Authorised share capital
88,010,000 Equity Shares of T 10/~ each 8,786 8,786
30540 Preference Shares of T 100/- each 3t 31
Total authorised capital 8,816 8,816

Issued share capital
8,64,01,070 Equity Shares of T 10/- each 8,640 8,640
(Out of above 313,10,000 Nos of equity shares of T 10/ each alloted for
consideration other than cash in pursuant to the scheme of
amalgamation

Total issucd capital 8.640 8,640
Subscribed and fully paid up capital
8,640 8,640
Total paid up capital 8,640 8,640
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding and the amount of share capital as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are set out below
{i\Equity Shares
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Nos Rsin Lakhs Nos Rs in Lakhs
At the beginning of the period 864,01,070 8,640.51 864,01,070 8,640
Qutstanding at the end of the year 864,01,070 8,640 844,01,070 8,640

" Terms & rights attached to equity shares

The Halding Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of T 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share,

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the campany, after distribution of all preferential amounts.

- The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Out of Equity shares issued by (he Company, shares held by its holding compauy, ultimate holding company and their subsidiaries/ associates are as below:

Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Nos Rs in Lakhs Nos Rsin Lakhs
Equity Shares
Holding Company -Siti Network Limited 518,31,000 5,183.10 518,31,000 5,183
Subsidiary of Holding Company- Central Bombay Cable Network 30,000 3 30,000 3
Limited
Details of share holder holding maore than 5% share as nt March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021
Equity Shares
Name of Sharcholder As at 31" Mar 2022 As at 31" March 2021
No. of Shares I % of Holding | No. of Shares I % of Holding
Siti Network Limited, Holding Company 518,31,000 59.99 518,31,000 59.99
Anurag Chirimar 52,36,357 6.06 52,36,357 6.06
Sunil Nihalani 54,54,347 6.31 54,54,347 6.31
Suresh Sethiya 54,51,007 46.31 54,51,007 6.31
Tinkari Dutta 52,44,586 6.07 52,44,586 6.07
Jawed Igbal 52,25,596 6.05 -
Zafar Igbal - 52,725,596 6.05
Surendra Kumar Agarwal 52,19.377 6,04 52,19,377 6.04
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Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

As at 31st Mar 2022 As at 31st Mar 2021
Yoof total % Change % Change durin;
Promoters name MNo. of Shares during the No. of Shares %of total shares iy & 2
shares the year
year ¥
Ceniral Bombay Cable Network Lid. 30,000 0.03% 0.00% 30,000 0.03% 0.00%
Siti Networks Limited 518,31,000 59.59% 0.00% 518,31,000 59.69% 0.00%
Mr, Anurcag Chicimar 52,36,357 6.06% 0.00% 52,36,357 6.06% 0.00%
Mrs. Sweeta Chirimar 1,07,480 0.12% 0.00% 1,07,480 0.12% 0.00%
Mr.Sunil Nihalani 54,71,387 6.33% 0.02% 54,54,347 6.31%, 0.00%
Mr. Gopi Chand Nihlani B 0.00% -0,02% 17,040 0.02% 0.00%
Mr. Suresh Kumar Sethiya 54,531,007 6.31% 0.00% 54,51,007 6.31% 0.00%
Mrs. Sudha Sethiya 16,810 0.02% 0.00% 16,81¢ 0.02% 0.00%
Mr. Tinkari Duita 52,44,586 6.07% 0.00% 52,44,586 6.07% 0.00%
Mr Jawed Iqbal 52,25,596 6,05% 6,05% - 0,00% 0.00%
Mr_Zafar Igbal - 0.00% -6.05% 52,25,596 6.05% 0.00%
Gurukripa Comlink Pwi, Ltd. 2,11,970 0.25% 0.00% 2,111,970 0.25% 0.00%
Statt Invesiment & Services Pvi.Lid. 3,30,430 0.38% 0.00% 3,30,430 0.318% 0.00%
Smar Vinimay Pvt, Ltd, 20,25,000 2.34% 0.00% 20,25,000 2.34% 0,00%
IMr. Surendra Kumar Agarwala 52,19,377 6.04% 0.00% 52,19,377 6.04% 0.00%
*Ceniral Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jointly with Mr, Arun 10 0.00%
Kumar Aparwal e 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jointly with Mr, Guishan o 0.00%
Khandelwal ) 0.00%, 10 0.00% 0.00%)
*Central Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jointly with Mr, Rolitash 10 0.00%
Jain - 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jointly with Mr. Brijesh 10 0.00%
Goel ] . 0.00% - 0.00% 0.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jointly with Mr. Shio . 0.00% .
Kumar Gupta i 0.00% 10 0.00% 0.00%
*Central Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jointly with Mr. Suresh 10 ooowl
Kumar i 0.00% 10 0,00%| 0.00%
*Cenlral Bombay Cable Network Ltd. jointly with Mr. Suresh 10 0.00%
Kumar Vobbilireddi ) 0.00% 30 0,00%%) 0.00%
864,011,070 864,01,070
* Central Bombay Cable Network Ltd holds beneficial interest of these shares
Other Equity Rs in lakhs
~ March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Securities premium account
Balance at the beginning of the year 18,968 18,968
Balance at the end of the year 18,968 18,968
Surplus/Deficit) in the Statement of profit and loss
Balance at the beginning of the year 15,854 14,937
Add: Profit/{Loss} for the year 1,208 899
Other Comprehensive Income 23 18
17,084.59 15,853.95
Non-controlling interests 1,109 1,342
1,109 1,342
Balance at the end of the year 36=I]53 34,822
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Non Current Financial Linbilities
Borrowings

(a) Term loans from banks
Term loans (Secured)

Term loan from Axis Bank carrying interest {2 one year MCLR +
1.60 % p.a. , repayable in 4 half yearly installments, secured by
the first and exclusive # equitable mortage of land and building at
Plot No.- XI/4, Block- EP & GP, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata-
700091, exlcusive security interest in the movable asset and entire
cumrent assets including recejvableboth present and future and
pledge of 29.99% shares of the company held by Siti Networks
Ltd (Holding Company)

(b) Unsecured loan
Unsecured loan

Other Non-Current financial liabilities
Lease liabilitics in respect of right of use assets
Security Deposit
Interest free deposits from customers

Non-Current Provisions
Provision for employce benefits
Provision for pratuity
Provision for compensated absences
Others- Provision for Chum STB's {Refer Note : 61)

Other non-current liabilities
Deferred Income

Short-term borrowings
Current maturities of long-term botrowings

Overdraft from Axis Bank

{Secured by first charge on entire current assets of the company,
both present and future and also secured by the first and exclusive
equitable mortgage land and building at Plot No.- XI/4, Bleck- EP
& GP, Sector-V, Salt Lake, Kolkata-700051)

Inter Corporate Deposit
Unsecured
From Related Parties

Trade payables

Total ouistanding dues of creditors of micro enterprises, small
enterprises and other enterprises {(Refer Note No : 46)

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than of micro enterprises,
small enterprises and other enterprises

Rs in Lakhs

March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
(@ 3,500

508 -
508 3,500
19 24
387 344
48 295
435 662
147 131
120 136
849 222
1,116 490
207 179
207 179

3,500
1,354 1,703
238 62
5,091 1,765
24 11
9,967 10,748

9,992 10,760
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Trade Payable ageing schedule for the years ended as on 31st March,2022

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1

Particulacs year 1-2 years 2.3 ycars More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 24 - - - 4
(ii) Others 5021 831 680 3,380 $,912
(iii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - . -
(iviDisputed dues - Others 9 3 8 30 55
‘Tetal Trade Payable as on 31st March, 2022 5,054 839 688 3410 9,952
Trade Payable ageing schedule for the years ended as on 31st March,2021
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Less ‘h;::;_ 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
(i) MSME 11 - - - 11
(ii) Others 7,407 342 2,024 917 10,690
(i) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - -
(iv)Disputed dues - Others 8 3 8 36 60
‘Total Trade Payable as on 31st March, 2021 T427 350 2,032 953 10,760
Rs in Lakhs
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Other Current financial liabilities
Lense Liability 50 46
Creditors for capital geods 141 1,478
Payable for Contractual Liabilities 51 30
Current maturities of long-term borrowings 0 3,084
Interest acerued but not due on borrowings 27 0
Book overdraft 94 72
313 4,710
Other Current Liabilities
Uneamed Income 2068 2013
Advances from customers 824 673
Payable for statutory linbilities [0} 696
3,454 3,382
Current Provisions
Provision for employce benefits
Provision for gratuity 25 18
Provision for compensated absences 14 13
39 31
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Revenue from operations

Sale of services
Subscription income
Advertisement income
Carriage income
Activation and Set top boxes pairing charges
Subscription Income - Internet
Other operating revenue
Sale of traded goods* -
Lease rental charges
Other networking and management income
Rental Income
Other Operating Income

Details of sale of traded goods
Set top box and viewing cards
Store and spares

Other income
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation
Interest income on

Bank deposits

Others
Bad Debt Recovered
Liabilities written back
Provision no longer required written back
Profit on sale of Investment
Net gain of Fair value of investments through P&L
Other non-operating income

Cost of materials consumed-stores and spares
Opening stock

Add : Purchases during the year

Less: Transferred to CWIP

Less : Closing stock

Rs in Lakhs
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
29,469 31,528
7,022 5,037
6,672 . 4,887
182 107
8,392 8,300
109 926
240 128
743 567
679 456
643 445
54,149 52,381
39 817
70 109
109 926

2
88 100
519 435
0 11
265 821
66 -
182 -
- 24 -
367 388
1,512 1,755
114 88
114 88
156 79
270 168
- 1
270 167
128 114
142 53
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 * March 2022

Rs in Lakhs

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

34 Cost/Purchase of Goods Sold
Set top box and viewing cards and stores and spares 77 791

77 791

35 Carriage sharing, pay channel and related costs

License Fee 4 6
Management Charges 300 300
Pay channel Expenses 22,400 21,685
Building Maintenance Expenses 52 50
Lease Rental & Right to Usage Charge 792 755
Bandwidth Cost 2,880 2,671
Program Production Expenses 190 193
Other Operational Expenses . 2,903 1,877
LCO sharing, Commission Charges and Incentives 6,026 6,928

35,547 34,465

36 Employee benefits expense

Salaries, allowances and bonus 2,187 1,884
Contributions to provident and other funds 127 117
Gratuity Fund Contribution 64 51
Staff welfare expenses 127 - 156

2,506 2,208

37 Finance costs

Interest on Financial Liabilities at Amortised Cost © 530 996
‘Bank charges 4 9
Interest on Lease Liability 11 11
Amortisation of borrowing and ancillary costs 2 1

547 1,016

38 Depreciation and amortisation expenses

Depreciation on Right to use (Lease) 57 59
Depreciation of tangible assets (Refer note 4) ‘ 6,529 6,866
Amortisation of intangible assets (Refer note 6) 2,110 1,989

8,696 8,915
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 * March 2022
Rs in Lakhs

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

39 Other expenses

Rent 206 173
Rates and taxes 195 215
Communication expenses 70 70
Repairs and maintenance

- Network 540 460

- Building 22 13

- Others ‘ 312 268
Electricity and water charges : 614 580
Legal, professional and consultancy charges 695 712
Printing and stationery ' 9 7
Service charges . 1,478 ~ 1,415
Travelling and conveyance expenses 260 214
Auditors' remuneration (Refer Note: 55) 33 24
Vehicle expenses : 271 244
Insurance expenses 17 16
Net loss in Fair value of investments through P&L - 214
Corporate Social Responsibility Expenditure 7 27
Loss on Sale / Discard / Write off of Assets (net) 606 13
Provision for Churn STB's 627 68
Provision for Expected Credit Loss 228 767
Provision for doubtful advances % nil (P Y Rs 17,700) - 0
Rebate and Discount N 11 1
Advertisement and publicity expenses 202 55
Bad debts 2,802
Less: Debts w.off from earlier provision (2,802) 0 1
Business and sales promotion 70 41
Exchange fluctuation loss 1 42
Miscellaneous expenses 69 102
Interest On License Fee ‘ 10 -
Membership and Subscription Expenses 15 14
Interest On Statutory Dues 0 6

6,567 5,760
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the vear ended 31" March 2022

Note No:40

Rs in Lakhs

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year Ended
31 March 2022

Year Ended
31 March 2021

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans as under

Remeasurement of employee benefit obligations 31 24
(ii) Income Tax relating to items that will not be reclassfied to profit or loss (8} (6)
B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
(ii)Income Tax relating to items that will be reclassfied to profit or loss - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 23 18
Note No : 41 Rs in Lakhs
. h Year Ended Year Ended
Earnings per share 31 March 202231 March 2021
Profit attributable to equity shareholders 1,208 899
|Number of weighted average equity shares 864,01,070 | 864,01,070
Basic (Rs) 1.40 1.04
Diluted (Rs) 1.40Q 1.04
10 10

Nominal value of per equity share 3)
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31% March 2022

Note No :42 Tax Expenscs

The major contponents of Income Tax for the year are as under: Rs in Lakhs

Particulars March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

Income tax related to items recognised directly in the statement of profit and loss

Current tax - current year 832 534
-carlier years 17 103
Deferred tax charge / (benefit) (245) (629)
Income tax expense reported in Profit or Loss [(i)+(ii)] 605 9
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) Section
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss
Current Tax (income) / expense on remeasurement of defined benefit plans g 6
Effective tax rate 38.32% 0.97%

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to the profit before income tax at statutory rate to the income tax
expense at the Company’s effective income tax rate for the year ended 31 March, 2022 and 31 March, 2021 is as follows:

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Profit before tax 1,579 928
Income tax
Statutory income tax on profit 398 235
Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 2,584 2,576
Additional allowances for tax purposes (2,427 {2,276)
Others / Deferred Tax effect (245) 629)
Capital Gain Taxes ! 126 -
Temporary differences in respect of unutilised tax losses. 152
Tax effect for earlier years 17 103
Tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss 603 9

The applicable statutory Income Tax rate is 25.168% for the FY 2021-22 (25.168% for FY 2020-21).

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the Company has a legally enforceable right to do so. For analysis of the
deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes refer note no-10.

The Group have temporary differences of Rs 152 lakhs ( P'Y Rs Nil ) in respect of unutilised tax losses.

Deferred tax recognised in statement of profit and loss Rs in Lakhs
For the year cnded March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Employee retirement benefits obligation @ (0}
Allowances for credit losses 349 329
Depreciation and amortisation (660) (929)
Other disallowances 69 (29)
Total (243} (629)

Reconciliation of deferrcd tax assets / (liahilities) nct:

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Total

Opening balance 130 (498)
Adjustment on Derecognition of Subsidiary - -
MAT Credit (adjusted) / entitlement - -
Deferred tax (charge)/credit recognised in - -
-Other Equity (Retained Earnings) - -
-Statement of profit and loss 245 629
375 130




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022

43 (I) Fair value measurements

.There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the period. The Group does not have any investments (other than
investment in subsidiary), derivative financial assets and liabilities. Hence, Level 1 and Level 2 hierarchy is not applicable,

Accounting classification and fair values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair vatues of {inancial assets and financial liabilities as at 31 March 2022:

A. Financial instruments by category Rs in Lalhs
March 31, 2022 March 31,2021

rvreL | Fvoct [AMUSd) pyren | wvocr | Amorised cost
Financial assets (Non Current & Current)
Bank deposits - - 453 - - 431
Inter- Corporate Deposit - - 5,937 - - 4,812
Interest accrued and not due ' - - 393 - - 404
Security deposits (Non Current) - - 127 - - 114
Investment (Non- current & Current, financial asset 1,149 - - 844 - -
Unbilled revenues - - 401 - - 535
Receivable against Redemption of Current
Investment - -
Trade receivables - - 5,750 - - 4,600
Cash and cash equivalents - - 1,470 - - 4,913
Other Bank Balances 313 103
Total financial assets 1,149 - 14,843 844 - 15,913
Financial labilities (Non Current & Current) .
Borrowings (non-current, financial liabilities) - - 508 - - 3,500
Borrowings (current,financial liabilities) - - 5,091 - - 1,765
Payables for purchase of property, plant and
equipment (non current) ) ) ) ) ) )
St?cu.rl.ty deposits received from customer & Lease ) ) 504 ) ) 662
Liability
Trade payables - - 9,992 - - 10,760
Other financial liabilities (current) - - 313 - - 4,710
Total financial liabilities - - 16,408 - - 21,397

Fair Value Hierarchy

Investment in subsidiaries, associate and joint venture are measured at cost as per Ind AS 27, 'Separate financial statements'.

*#The Group has not disclosed the fair values for financial instruments such as cash & cash equivalents, other bank balances, short term trade
receivables, short term trade payables because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3 — Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
The cost of unquoted investments included in Level 3 of fair value hierarchy approximate their fair value b

fair value measurements and the cost represents estimate of fair value within that range.

The fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :

ecause there is a wide range of possible




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022

31-03-2022 31-03-2021 |
Particulars {Rs in Lakhs) | (Rs in Lakhs){  Level Valuation Techingues and Key Points

Financial Assets :

The mutual funds are valued using the

Investment in Mutual Funds 1,149 - 1 closing NAY
Net Asset value of share has been
Invesiment in Equity Shares - 844 3 considered as its fair value
(Rs in Lakhs)

Reeonciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement of financial assets is as follows:

31-03-2022f  31-03-2021
Balance at the beginning of the year ' 844 1,058
Impairment in value of investments - =214
Deletions during the year -844 -
Balance at the end of the year - 844

(II) Financial risk management objcctives and policies

Financial risk management

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the
Group’s operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The Groups’s principal financial assets include teade and other receivables,
and cash and shori-term deposits that derive directly from its operations. The Groups's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Dircctors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

A, Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument will fail 1o perform or pay amounts due to the Group causing
financial loss. The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties and incorporates this information into
its credit risk controls.

Credit risk management
Credit risk rating
The Group assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of assumptions, inputs and

factors specific to the class of financial assets.

A: Low credit risk on financial reporting date
B: High credit risk

The Group provides for expected credit loss based on the following:

Asset group Basis of categorisation Provision for expected credit loss

Cash and cash equivalents and other Life time expected credit loss or fully provided for
financial assets except Trade

Receivable,security deposits, Unbilled

Low credit risk
revenue and amount recoverable

High credit risk Trade receivables, security deposits, Life time expected credit loss or fully provided for

Investment, Interest Accrued but not due,
Unbilled revenue and amount recovegatile .
T
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INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022

Based on business environment in which the Group operates, a default on a financial asset is considered when the counter party fails to make
payments within the agreed time period as per contract. Loss rates reflecting defaults are based on actual credit loss experience and considering

differences between current and historical economic conditions.

Credit rating

Low credit risk

High credit risk

Concentration of trade receivables
The Group has widespread customers and there is no concentration of trade receivables,

Credit risk exposure
Provision for expected credit losscs

Cash and cash equivalents and other financial assets except
Trade Receivable,security deposits, Unbilled revenue and
amount recoverable

Trade receivables, security deposits, Investment, Interest
Accrued but not due, Unbilled revenue and amount

Rs in Lakhs

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
2,629 5,851
13,363 10,905

For the purpose of computation of expected credit loss, the Group has analysed the trend of provisions for doubtful debts created in earlier years
and has also considered the fact that the Group has revenue from DAS customers which has been booked as per prepaid model of billing. The
expected credit loss has been computed on basis of recoverability (after anaiysing each head separately) for DAS customers. Further, the Group has
analysed expected credit loss separately for carriage revenuc customer (including Marketing & Placement Income customers) and other than
carriage revenue customer primarily because the characteristics and historical losses trend was different in these two streams.. The group does not
expect any further risk of credit impairment on account of possible impact relating to COVID 19 in estimating expected credit loss provision.

Expected credit loss for Trade receivables, security deposit and Amounts recoverable under general approach

As at Maxch 31, 2022

Ageing

Trade receivables
Security Deposit
Inter- Corporate Deposit

Investment

Unbilled Revenue

As at March 31, 2021

Ageing

Trade receivables
Security Deposit
Inter- Corporate Deposit

Investment

Unbilled Revenue

Recongiliation of loss allowance provision — Trade receivables
Laoss allowance on March 31, 2021

Changes in loss allowance

Loss allowance on March 31, 2022

Rs in Lalhs

Estimated- Expected Carrying amount
gross carrying credit net of impairment
amount losses provision
6,615 866 5,750
127 - 127
6,330 - 6,330
1,149 - 1,149
401 - 401
Rs in Lakhs
Estimated Expected  Carrying amount
gross carrying eredit net of impairment
amount losses provision
8,126 3,526 " 4,600
114 - 114
5,216 - 5,216
844 - 344
535 - 535

Rs in Lakhs
3,526
(2,661)

866



INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policies and other cxplanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022

B.Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that suitable sources of funding for the Groups's business activities may not be available .

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of commilted credit facilities to meet obligations when due and to close out market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the
Groups’s liquidity position (comprising the undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. Short
term liquidity requirements comprises mainly of trade payables and employee dues arising during normal course of business as on cach balance
sheet dale. Long- term liquidity requirement is assessed by the management on periodical basis and is managed through internal accruals and
through funding commitments from shareholders. As at each statement of financial position date, the Groups’s liabilities having contractual
maturities (including interest payments where applicable) are summarised as follows:

(ii) Maturities of financial liabilitics
Rs in Lakh

March 31, 2022 March 31,2021
Contractual maturities of financial liabilities | Lessthan  Onetotwo More than| Less than one Onetotwe  More than two
one year years two years year years years

Non-derivatives
Secured Borrowings (non-current,financial - 508 - 519 3,748 -
liabilities)
Borrowings (current, financial liabilities) including 5,366 - - 1,765 - -
interest
Borrowings (non-current,financial liabilities) - - - - - -
Other financial liabilities 193 - - 1,508 - -
Security deposits received from customer - - 435 - - 639
Book Overdraft 94 - - 72 - -
Trade payables 9,992 - - 10,760 - -
Lease liabilities in respect of right of use assets 42 25 3 46 16 7
Total non-derivative liabilitics 15,685 533 438 14,669 3,764 646

C.Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices - such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates - wilk affect the Groups’s income or the value

of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable
parameters, while optimising the retorn.

Cash Flow Hedge Accounting

The Group has foreign currency exposure in the form of Trade Payable/Advance to Vendors and is exposed to change in the exchange rates.
Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the
Group’s functional currency (). The risk is measured through 2 forecast of highly probable foreign currency cash flows. '

Foreign currency risk is managed by following established risk manapement policies, which inter alia includes menitoring the movements in
currencies in which the capex vendors are payable and hedging the exposure to foreign currency risk by entering into forward currency contracts as
and when deemed appropriate.

The Group does not enter into or trade financial instrument including derivative for speculative purpose.




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policics and other cxplanatory information for the year ended March 31, 2022

(i} Forcign curreney risk
Foreign currency risk exposure:
The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting period expressed in INR, are as follows Rs in Lakhs

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Financial asscts (A) - -
Trade receivables

Financial liabilities (B) 188 23-0
Payable to vendors for properiy, plant and equipment 188 230
Net exposure (B-A) 188 230
Sensitivity

The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments.

Impact on Profit after tax
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
®) /USD increased by 5% (previous year 5%) ()] (12)
(%) / USD increased by 5% (previous year 5%) 9 12

(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Groups’s main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.

(a) Interest rate risk exposure )
The Group’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposures on long-term financing. At 31" March the Group is exposed to changes in
market interest rates through bank borrowings at variable interest rates. Other borrowings are at fixed interest rates.

Rs in Lakhs
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Variable rate borrowings 3,500 6,584
Total borrowings : 3,500 ’ 6,584

(b) Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest expense from borrowings as a result of
changes in interest rates.
Impact on loss after tax
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
35.00 65.84
(35.00) (65.84)

Interest rates — increase by 100 basis points (P Y 100 bps)
Interest rates — decrease by 100 basis points (P Y 100 bps)

(1IT) Capital management

Risk Management .

The Group’s objectives when managing capital is to safeguard continuity, maintain a strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and provide adequate return to shareholders through continuing growth. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from
previous year. The Group sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annual business and long-term operating plans which include capital
and other strategic investments The funding requirements are met through a mixture of equity, internal fund generation and other non-current
borrowings. The Group’s policy is to use current and non-current borrowings to meet anticipated funding requirements, The Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratic which is net debt divided by total capital (equity plus net debt) . The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. Net debt are non-current and current borrowings as reduced by cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and

current inveslments, Equity comprises all components including other comprehensive income




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Summary of significant accounting policics and other explanatory infermation for the year ended March 31, 2022

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Current Investment 1,149 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,470 4913
Other Bank Balances 313 103
Margin money 453 431
Total eash (A) 3,384 5,447
Borrowings (non current, financial liabilities) 508 3,500
Borrowings (current, financial Iiabilif.ies) 5,001 1,765
Current maturities of long-term borrowings - 3,084
Total borrowing (B) 5,599 8,349
Net debt (C=B-A) 2,215 2,901
Total equity 45,802 44,804
Total capital (equity + net debts) (D) 48,017 47,705
Gearing ratio (C/D) 5% - 6%

Classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities
The classification and measurement of financial assets will be made considering whether the conditions as per Ind AS 109 are met based on facts
and circumstances existing at the date of transition.

Financial assets can be measured using effective interest method by assessing its contractual cash flow characteristics only on the basis of facts and
circumstances existing at the date of transition and if it is impracticable to assess clements of modified time value of money i.e. the use of effective
interest method, fair value of financial asset at the date of transition shall be the new carrying amount of that asset. The measurement exemption
applies for financial liabilities as well.

Applying a requirement is impracticable when an entity cannot apply it after making every reasonable effort to do so. It is impracticable to apply
the changes retrospectively if:

a) The effects of the retrospective application or retrospective restatement are not determinable;

b) The retrospecti\}e application or restatement requires assumptions about what management’s intent would have been in that period;
The retrospective application or retrospective restatement requires significant estimates of amounts and it is impossible to distinguish objectively
information about those estimates that existed at that time,




INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED
Notes to Conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2022

44 Coutingent liabilities and commitments (to the extent not provided for)

Asat3l Asat3] Mar
Particulars Mar 2022 2021

Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs

{i} Contingent Liabilitics

(a) Claims apainst the group not acknowledged as debi # 11,874 11,137
(b) Guarantees ## 324 327
12,198 11,464

(i) Commitments
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided

for (Net of advances) . 40 1,875

40 1,875

# Tncludes Rs 401 { PY Rs 401 lakhs) lakhs on account of entry tax on import of STB and other networking materials into West Bengal, The West Bengal
government levied entry tax vide “West Benpal Tax on entry of goods into local areas Act 2012°, The operation of the Act was w.e.f. [st Apr-2012. The validity of the
this levy has been challenged by the company in the Honarable Caleutta High Court by & writ petition, on the belief that the levy is uncenstitutional and is thus
unsustainable. The company is hopeful of getting a favourable order.

# Includes Rs 6 (PY Rs 6 lakhs) lakhs against a money suit filed by M/s Ten Dot Net Cable Pvt. Ltd. for recovery of alleged dues against a work contract allegedly
done for the company.

# Includes Rs 87 (PY Rs 87 iakhs) lakhs on account of demand received from District Magistrate Noida for Entertainment Tax on activation / installation charges of
STB's in UP. Demand received of Rs 87 lakhs for the period till June' 17 on activation charges on STB's.

# Includes Rs 37 (PY Rs 37 lakhs) lakhs on account of Show cause cum demand received from Service Tax dept for financial year 2014-15 & 2015-16 and Rs 25
(PY Rs 25 lakhs) Lakhs on account of Show Couse Notice cum demand received from service tax Deptt on observation of Service Tax audit for F.Y. 16-17 & upto
June'l7 for excess utilisation of Cenvat Credit & short payment of RCM on which the company believes that no liability will develop on the company in future.

# Includes Rs 58 (PY Rs 78 lakhs) lakhs on account of demand received from Joint Commissioner (AE) Central Tax-UP. The demand is against Audit for FY 2012-
13, 2013-14, 2014-15, 2015-16 & 2016-17.

# Includes Rs 416 { PY Rs 416 lakhs) lakhs of Demand by Sales tax Depit. on account of VAT & CST liability for FY.2015-16. The copmany files a writ petition
before Tribunal. The writ petition has been disallowed on the'ground of Non attendance, now restoration petition was filed before Kolkata High Court & the company

is hopefull of getting a favourable order .

# Includes Rs 116 (PY Rs 116 lakhs) lakhs on account of Fharkhand VAT liability on Set Top Box transfer.

# Includes Rs 11 (PY Rs 11 lakhs) lakhs on account of show cause notice received from Depit. for short payment of service Tax & inadmissibility of Cenvat & non
payment of RCM & Interest in respect of Noida unit for FY.12-13 to FY.15-16.

# Includes Rs 4 (PY Rs 4 lakhs) lakhs on account of case filed By Den Nelwork against Sahay Cable, Nilabh & Vinod kumar in which ICNCL is also being made
party for recovery of their dues.

# includes Appeal against Demand (CERA) of Rs 86 (PY Rs 86 lakhs) lakhs for difference between opening & closing Cenvat in the month of Oct'2015 .

# Includes effect of reduction in MAT credit with consequent impact on MAT utilisation in A.Y. 2017-18 which is the subject matter of Contingency. Amount
ealewlated 8s difference between MAT credit availed as per ITR filed for AY. 2016-17 Rs 317 (PY Rs 317 lakhs) lakhs and MAT credit available as per Order w/s
143(3)} Rs 28 (PY Rs 28 lakhs) lakhs.

# Includes income tax demand for AY 2017-18 Rs 218 Lakhs (PY Rs 218 lakhs) which has been adjusted with TDS refundable. The said demand has been disputed
in appeal by the company, .

# Includes income ax demand for AY 2018-19 Rs 182 Lakhs (PY : 182), The said demand has been disputed in appeal by the company.

# During the financial year ended 31 March 2019, the Wirectorate of Revenue Intelligence (DRI), Bangalore, w's 108 of the Custom Act, 1962, had inquired about the
classification of viewing cards for applicability of customs duty. The Company had, suo-moto, paid Rs 20 Lakhs under protest. Subsequently the Company has
received a show cause notice with a demand for Rs 6671 Lakhs, The Company has filed a Writ Petition before the Hon'ble Delhi High Court challenging the Show
Cause Nofice and is confident that the demand will not sustain. Therefore no provision has been made in these financial statements and the amount demanded has
been considered as contingent liability.

# Includes Rs 212 lakhs (PY Rs 212 lakhs) on account of disputed pay channel liabilities of Broadcasters as the rate charged as per Invoices for different packages
are higher than as agreed between Broadeasters & the Company. :

# Indinet Service Pvt Ltd, the subsidiary company has been granted Unified License fiom Ministry of Communications & IT, Department of Telecoms (DoT), under
Government of India, under which the company is required to pay an annual license fee (AGR Fee) at the rate of 8% of the its adjusted gross revenue. Internet Serviee
providers' Association of India of which the Company is a member had filed a petition with others against the DoT before the Telecom Dispute Settlement Appellate
Tribunal (TDSAT) against levy of AGR Fee on Pure Internet Service. TDSAT vide it's order dated 18/10/2019 has upheld the contention of the petitioners and set
aside the demand of AGR Fee on Purc Internet Setvices. In view of the said Order, the company has ceased to provide for the AGR Fee w.e.f. FY 2019-20 on Pure
Internet Service, DoT has filed an Appeal before the Hon'ble Supreme Court against the Order of the TDSAT and the same is pending for finat adjudication. In view
of the same, the liability of AGR Fee of Rs 58450 thousands , Rs 66230 thousands & Rs 66471 thousnads for the year ended 31st March, 2020 , 31st March,2021 &
31st March 2022 respectively on Pure Internet Services has been considered to be contingent in nature due to the prevailing uncertainty of the final outcome of the
dispute, )

# Includes claims against the Company, not acknowledged as debts Rs 1,143 lakhs (Previous Year Rs 1,049 lakhs) in respect of Siti Maurya Cable Net Private Ltd,
the Subsidiary Company.

## For counter bank guarantees in respect of outstanding bank guarantees & FD pledged Rs 324 lakhs (PY Rs 327 Inkhs}

In addition, the Group is subject to legal proceeding and claims, which have arisen in the ordinary course of business. The Group's management daes not reasonably
expect that there legal action, when ultimately concluded and determined, will have a material and adverge effect on the Group's result of operation or financial

conditions.
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45 Group Information -

46

a) Accounting Policy for Non Controlling Intercst
The group recognises non-controlling interest in an acquired entity at the non-controliing interest's proportionate share of the acquired entity net identifiable
assets,
b) Subsidiaries
T}‘le groups subsidiaries at 31 March 2022 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that are held
directly by the group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting held by the group. The country of incorporation or registration is also
their principal place of business.
Ownership
Place of Ownership :.::f{mlft Ownership Ownership interest
Sr No Name of Entity Business interest held Y interest held held by Nen Business
b A
Y group Controlling by group  Controlling interest
interest
as at March 31, 2021 as at March 31, 2021
1 Siti Maurya Cable Net Pvt. Ltd. India S0.10%  4990%  50.10% 19.90% Digi:lsci::s‘: ™
Internet Service
2 Indinet Service Pvt. Lid. : India 100% 0% 100% 0% Provider
Business
’ 4
3 Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvt Ltd India 7600%  2400%  000% 0.00% Dighal Ceble TV
Dues to Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises: Rs in Lakhs
. as at as at
1
Farticulars 31-03-2022 | 31-03-2021
24 il

i) the principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of]
each accounting year,

ii) the amount of interest paid by the Group in terms of section 16 of MSMED Act, 2006, along with
the amounts of the payment made to the suppliers beyond the appointed day during the yeor

iii) the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but buyond the appointed day during the year withoul adding the interest specified under
MSMED Act, 2006

iv) the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year; and

v} the amount of fusther inlerest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of]
disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006,

#The management has identified dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under Micro, Stnal! and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 (MSMEI) on the basis of information made available by the supplier or vendats of the Group.

47 Value of Imports calenlated on CIF basis

48

31-Mar-22  31-Mar-21
Particulars Rs in Lakhs Rsin
Lakhs
Consumables 74 66
Capital Goods 409 200
Total 483 265
Expenditure in Foreign Currency
31-Mar-22  3I1-Mar-21
Particulars Rs in Lakhs Rsin
Lakhs
Membership & Subscription 11 11
Annual Maintenance Charges 41 105
License Fees 366 722
Travelling & Conveyance - 1
Total 618 839
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INDIAN CABLE NET COMPANY LIMITED

Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31" March 2022
49 At the year end, unhedged foreign currency exposures are as follows:

As on 31/03/2022 As on 31/03/2021
Particulars Currency “Rgin Lakhs In Foreign Rsin Lakhs In Forcign
i Currency Currency
Advance to Vendor usD 48.20 0.64 36,26 0.49
Payable to Vendor UsD - - 28.18 0.38
Payable to Vendor Euro 187.76 2.22 201.90 2.35
Total 236 3 266 3

50 (i) The detail of employee benefit for the period in respect of gratuity which is funded defined benefit plan is as under:

a. Component of employer expense Rs in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As on 31" Mar 2022 As on 31" Mar 2021
Current Service Cost 53 41
Interest on defined benefit obligation 23 20
Expected Return on plan assets (12) (10)
Net Accrual losses/(pains) recopnized in the year (11) (24)
Past Service Cost - -
Total Included in employer benefit 43 27
Actual Return on plan assets 10 11
b. Net Asset / (Liability) recognized in the balance sheet as at 31st March 2021 Rs in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As on 31" Mar 2022 As on 31" March 2021
Present Value of Funded Obligation 372 313
Fair Value of Plan Assets . 200 164
Net Liability 172 149
Amount in Balance Shect
Linbility * 172 149
Assets
Net Liability 172 149
¢. Reconciliation of Benefit Obligation & Plan Assets for the Period ended: Rs in Lakhs
PARTICULARS As on 31" March 2022 As on 31" March 2021
Change in Defined Benefit Obligation
Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 313 283
Impact of Derecognition of Axom Communeation &
Cable Pvt Ltd
Current Service Cost 53 ’ 41
Interest Cost 23 20
Actuarial Losses / (Gain) (13) (23)
Past Service Cost - -
Benefits Paid . 4 LEH
Closing Defincd Benefit Obligation 372 313
Change in Fair Value of Assets
Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets 164 140
Expected Return on Plan Assels 12 10
Actuarial Gain / (Losses) (2) 1
Contribution by Employer 30 19
Benefits Paid (3 6
Closing Fair Value on Plan Assets 200 . 164
Expected Employer Contribution Next Year 42 38

(ii) The Defined Benefit Obligation of compensated absence in respect of Privilege Leave is Rs 133 Lakhs (P,Y Rs 149 Lakhs).

(iii) Actuarial Assumptions

Category of Assets As on 31* March 2022 As on 31" March 2021
Discount Rate (p.a.) 7.00% 7.00%
Expected rate of return on Assets 7.00% 7.00%
Salary Escalation Rate (p.a.) 8.00% 8.00%

a  Discount Rate is based on the prevailing market yield of Indian Government Securities as the balance sheet as date for expected term of obligation.

b Expected rate of return on plan assets is based on our expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on invesiment of the fund during the
estimated term of obligations.

¢ Salary Escalation rate is based on estimates of future salary increases taking into consideration of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.

51 The Commercial Tax authoritics, Government of West Bengal, by an order dated June 9, 2003, sought to impose sales fax, with retrospective effect from April 2,
1997, on the Company’s income from ¢able TV services. The Company has filed an application before the Hon’ble West Bengal Taxation Tribunal on July 15, 2003,
seeking, inter alia, that the aforesaid order be set aside. The Hon'ble West Bengal Taxation Tribunal by its order dated August 1, 2003 has directed that pending

disposal of the application, assessment proceedings may continue but that no demand notice will be issued. The matter had come for hearing on several occasions but

has been adjoumed, pending State’s submissions. In view of the fact that neither assessment proceedings have been completed nor demand notice has been issued, the
alleged liability for Sales tax cannot heash InConsequently no liability on account of sales t cognized by the Company in the books of accounts.
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31* March 2022

52 During the year, one of the Financial Creditor of Siti Networks Ltd, ("SNL" or "The Holding Co".) has filed a petition w's 7 of the Insolvency and Bankeruptey Code,
2016 ("IBC") before the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (NCLT)for alleged default in repayment of financial liability, which is pending for
admission before the NCLT. The company is of the view that no provision is required in the books in respect of an unsecured loan outstanding as on 31 March, 22 of
T 1125 Lakhs given 1o SNL during the year and trade Receivable which SNL owes to the company in view of the pendency of the proceedings for the admission of
the petition under IBC and also in view of the prospective setilement of dues in course of the regular nature of business transactions between the company and SNL,
and accordingly no provision has been made in the accounts,

53 Leases @
Right-of-use assets Rs in lakhs
Land and
Building Total
Gross carrying amount
Balance as at April 01, 2021 180 180
Addition 57 57
Disposals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022‘ 237 237
Accumulated depreciation
Balance as at April 01, 2021 118 118
Charge for the year 57 57
Dispasals - -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 175 175
Net earrying amount as at Mareh 31, 2021 62 62
Net earrying amount as at March 31, 2022 62 62

Disclosures on lease pursuant to Ind AS 116 - Leases

(=)

(k)

(<}

@

()

®

The Company has leases for office buildings. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of
the lease liability and right of use assets. The Company classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment.

Each lease generally impases a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company to sublease the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset
can only be used by the Company. Some leases contain an option o extend the lease for a further term. The Company is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying leased asscls as security. For leases over office buildings and other premises, the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair
and return the properties in their original condition at the end of the lease. Further, the Company is requited to pay maintenance fees in accordance with the
lease contracts.

The table below describes the nature of the Company’s leasing activities by type of right-of-use asset recognised or balance sheet:

. Number of Range of remaining term | Number of leases with Number of leases with
Right-of-use asset ROU assels . N . o .
(in years) extension options termination options
leased

Buildings 18 1-3 - -
Reconcilliation of the lease liability

Rs in Lakhs

. 31st March 31st March

Particulars 2022 2021
Balance at the beginning of
the year 7 122
Lease liabilities recognized
during the year 55 8
Interest Expense on Lease
Liability 11 11
Cash Outflow 67 70
Balance at the end of the
year 69 70

Lease payments not included in measurement of lease liability -

The expense relating o payments net included in the measurement of the lease linbility is as follows: T in Iakhs
Particulars 31 March 2022 | 31 March 2021

Short-term and leases of low value assets 130 173

Variable lease payments - -

is Rs 11 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2022,

Total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2022 is Rs 67 lakhs. Inlerest on fease liabiliti
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54 Future Minimum Lease Payments Receivable and their Present Valucs are given below:

Minimum lense payments receivable :
Within 1 year 1to 5 years

March 31, 2022

Lease payments 910 4,718
Finance charges - -
Net present value 910 4,718
March 31, 2021

Lease payments 704 4,164
Finance charges - -
Net present value 704 4,164

after 5 years

17,405

17,405

18311

18,311

55 Payment to Auditors (acerued) (Excluding Goods & Service Tax)

Rs in Lakhs

Total

23,032

23,032

23,179

23,179

Rs in Lakhs

PARTICULARS As on 31" March 2022 As on 31" March 2021
Audit Fees 14 11
Limited Review 9 7
Tax Audit Fees 3 2
Other Services 7 5
Reimbursements 0 1
Total 33 26

56 In compliance with Indian Accounting Standard 110 Consolidated Financial Statements" referred to in Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of
{he Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the parent company has prepared the accompanying consolidated financial statements, which

includes the financial statement of the parent company and its subsidiaries listed below:

Name of the Subsidiarics

Siti Maurya Cable Net Pvt, Ltd.

Indinet Service Pvt. Lid.

Meghbela Infitel Cable & Broadband Pvi Lid

57 Certain Balances of Loans & Advances, Trade Receivablés, Trade Payables, and other assets & liabilities are subject to confirmation.

58 Corperate Social Responsibility (CSR)

CSR Amount required to be spent by the companies within the group as per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013 read with Schedule VI thereof,

by way of contribution towards various activities.

(a)
was Rs 4 lakhs (P Y Rs 27 Lakhs).

Country of Incorporation Percentage of Ownership

India
India
[ndia

50.10%
100.00%
76.00%

Average net profit s prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act 2013: Rs 217 lakhs (PY Rs 1354 lakhs). Accordingly amount requi

{b) Expenditure in related corporate social responsibility during the year Rs 7 lakhs (PY Rs 27 lakhs).

Details of Amount spent towards CSR is given below

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars 2021-22 2020-21
Health 5 27
Sport Sponsorship 2 -
P M cares Fund (P Y Rs 46000) - 0
Total 7 27

59 In the opinion of the Board of Directors the current assets, loans and advances shown in the Balance Sheet as o 317 Mar’ 2022 are considered good and fully

recoverable, except otherwise stated and provisien for all known liabilities has been made in the accounts.

60 Subsequent 10 outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) and consequential lockdown across the country, the Group hes continved to operate and provide cable services to
disruptions. Based on its review and current indicators of economic slowdown, there is no

its customers, which has been declared as an essential service, without
ial changes arising of future economic conditions and impact on its

significant impact on its financial statement. The Group will continue to closely monitor any materi;

business.

the utilisation is done
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61 Movement of Provision - Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Provision for Churn STB

Non Current| Current

Balance as at 31 March 2021 222 -

Additions ¥ 627 -

Balnnce as at 31 March 2022 849 -

* Included under Qther Expenses in the statement of Profit and Loss.

62 Information under section 186 (4) of the Companies Act 2013

There are no investments or Joan given or guarantee provided or security given by the group other than the loans and investments stated under note
7 & 8 in this consolidated financial statement, which have been made for the purpose of business.

63 Assets hypothecated / pledged as security
The carrying amounts of assets hypothecated / pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are

Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Refer Note "As u “As "t
No. 31" March, | 31" March,
2022 2021

Current
Financial assets 4,049 3,869
Trade Receivables 14 4,049 3,869
Non-financial asscts . 119 102
Inventories 12 119 102
Total current assets pledged as security 4,168 3,972
Non-current
Property Plant & Equipment 4 24,979 29,370
Tnvestment Property 5 7,009 6,498
Other Non Current Financial Assets 9 453 431
Total non-currents assets pledged as security 32,440 36,300
Total asscts pledged as sccurity 36,608 40,272

64 Revenue from contracts with customers

{A) Disappregation of revenue
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Particulars Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Revenut from operations
Sale of services
Suhscription income 29,469 31,528
Advertisement income 7,022 5,037
Carriage income & Marketing Income 6,672 4,387
Activation and Set top boxes pairing charges 182 107
Subscription ITncome - Internet 8,392 8,300
Other operating revenus
Sale of traded poods 109 926
Lease rental charges 240 128
Other networking and management incomme 743 567
Rent Income 679 456
Qither Operating Ingome 643 445

54,149 52,381

The Group has disaggregated the revenue fram contracts with customers on the basis of nature of services/gaods sold. The Group believes that the disaggregation of revenue on the
basis of nature of serviceg/goods sold has no impact on the nature, amount, timing & wncertainty of revenues and cash flows.
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{B) Contract Balances
The Group classifies the right to consideration in exchange for deliverables as either o receivable or as unbilled revenue.
Frade reccivable and unbilled revenues are prescnted net of impainnent in the Balance Shoet.

31-Mnr-22 31-Mar-21
Particulars Rs in Lakhs Rs in Lakhs
Cantract assets (Trade Receivables) 5,750 4,600
Cantract assets (Unbilled Revenus) 401 526
Contract liabilities (Unearned Revenue) . 2077 2,013
8,227 7,139

The contract asscts is the Group's rights to consideration in exchange for goods and services that the Group as transferred to a customer. The contract liabilities primarily relate to the

billing recognized in advance where performance obligations are yet to be satisfied.

Significant changes in the contract assets and the contract liabilitics balances during the year are as follows.

Rs in Lakhs
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Particulars
Contract Contract Contract Contract
nssets liabilities assets liabilities
Balancc at the beginning of the year 526 2,013 507 1,923
Add: Advance Income received/ Income accrued not billed during the 401 2,077 526 2,013
year
Revenue recognised/income billed that is included in the balance at the 526 2,013 307 1,923
beginning of the year
Balance at the end of the year . 401 2,077 526 2,013

(C) Performance Obligations and Remaining Performance Obligations

“The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet to be recognized as at the end of the reporting period and
an explanation as to when the Group expecls to recognize these amounts in revenue. Appiying the praciical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Group has not

disclosed the remaining performances as the performance abligations relates to contracts that have an original expected duration of one year or less.

Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts,

periodic revalidations, adjustment for revenue that has not materiafized and adjustments for cusrency.
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65 Related Party Disclosure
List of parties where control Exists

a. HoMing Company f, Dircctor/ Key Managerial Personnel
* Siti Networks Limited « Mr. Surendra Kumar Agarwala Whole Time Director
b. Fellow Subsidiary Companies** * Mr, Suresh Kumar Sethiya Whole Time Director
* Siti Broadband Services Private Limited « Mr. Sanjay Berry Director (tili 30.06.2021)
» Siti Vision Digital Media Private Limited * Ms. Kavita Anand Kapahi Independent Director (till 15.11.2021)
» Variety Entertainment Private Limited * Ms. Kavita Anand Kapahi Director (w.e.f. 16.11,2021)
c. Entities with Common Control *» Mr Yogesh Sharma Director {(w.e.f. 12.07.2021)
» Siti Darshan Cable Net Co. Private Limited » Mr Sunil Kumar Maheshwari Independent Director{w.e.f. 25,10.2021)
+ Siti Royal Heritage Cable Net Co. Private Limited » Mr. Atul Kumar Singh Chief Financial Officer
» Siti Singbhum Cable Net Company Pvt. Lid. (Company under + Mr, Laxman Singh Kaira Company Secretary

process of strike ofT)
d.  Entitics with Significant Influence®*
» Maurya Diginet Pvi. Ltd.
¢ Entitics in which Directors Intercsted**
+ Smart Vinimay Private Limited
+ Caleutta Communication LLP
» Digital Googly
» Moople Animation Pvt Ltd
*» Gurukripa Comlink Private Limited
» Maxpro Tracon Private Limited
» Victor Mediia Private Limited
» Victor Distributers
» Maa Laxmi Network
» Global Cable
= IT Agency
* Rai Cable Network
» Raja Cable
» Puja Cable
= Nice Network
= Maa Vaishanav Satelite Vision
= SRD Properties Pvi. Ltd.
« Hitech Visual Channels private Limited
= Kolkala Media Services Private Limited
» Kolkata Entertainment Services LLP
= May Fair Cable Linc
« Axom Communications & Cable Private Limited {upto 16.02.2022)
*Victor Electro Services
» Hi Tech Film and Broadcast Academy
+Satelite Broadband Network
» Rai Cable
» Raja Cable TV Network
* RR Cable Network
» New Raja Cable
« Maa Vaishnav Services
+ Maa Vaishanav Vision
+ Shiva Vision
« Baba Bhole Digital Network
« Mahavir Star Network
« Maa Rajrappa Digital Cable Network
+ Baba Bhole Digitat Cable Network
» Lovely Digital Cable Network
» Puja Rani Digital Cable Network
« Kashi Vishwanath Cable Network
+ Prakash Cable Network
+ Meghbela Cable & Breadband Services Pyt Lid
» Pacenet Meghbela Broadband Pvt Lid
» Infiniti Television & Telecom Pvt Ltd
*# with whom the Company has transactions during the current year and previous year
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Transactions with related parties.

Rs in Lakhs

. . .. Siti Darshan Cable Net Co.| Siti Royal Heritage Cabl
Particulars Siti Network Limited (P) Lt Let ®) L:g-e anle Calentta Communication LLP
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 2122 | FY20-21 Iy 21-22 FY 20-21
Expenses paid on behalf of 252 - - 220 - i} - .
Lean Given 1,125 . - . - - - -
Purchase of material & Services
1,314 1,150 1,331 1,230 - - 45 15
Sales of service and materials 1,009 1,110 B R . } ) )
Sale of Fixed assets 7 2 . . _ i} ) )
Bad Debt written off . _ 5 206.82 ; } ) )
Provision for Doubtful Debts - - - 2 11 13 - -
Outstanding at the end of year
& Y 1,281 414 76) (“n 11 11 3 75
Transactions with related parties, Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Infiniti Television & Siti Vision Digital Media | Smart Vinimay Private | Siti Singhbhum Cable Net Co. (P)
Telecom Pvt Lid Pyt Ltd limited Ltd.
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY20-21 FY 2122 FY 20-21
Expenses paid on behalf of 0 0
Borrowings 200 . R } . _ _
Purchase of material & Services ) ) ) A 13 25 ) }
Sales of service and materials ) ) ) ) 63 36 : .
Bad Debt written off ) ) . _ ) 16 ; 2,49
Qutstanding at the end of year (200) . 20 20 @ ) o N
Transactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
. Smart Cable & Broadband | Gurukripa Comlink Pyt |Axom Communications &
Particulars Services Ltd Cable Pvt. Lid. Maxpro Tracen Pvt Litd
'Y 21-22 Ty 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Expenses paid on behalf of _ ) _ . R . N .
Purchase of material & Services
- 0 6 4 - - 5 7
Sales of service and materials ) 28 9 6 136 224 2 29
Provision for Doubtful Debts . . - . - 41 - -
Baddebt wrilten off ) 2.38 } ) . } 1 1
OQutstanding at the end of ycar i} o 0 1 109 341 0 1
‘Fransactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Siti Broadband Services Pvt)| MAURYA DIGINET PYT Raja Cable New Raja Cable
Lid LTD
FY 21-22 FY 20-2} FY 21-22 FY 20-21 Fy21-22 | FY20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Purchase of material & Services
- - 356 360 - - - -
Sales of service and materials } . } i} 23 28 16 15
Bad Debt Written off . . 0 1
Provision for Doubtful Debis - - - - - 18 - 1
Outstanding at the end of year 3 29 (81) (199) i
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Transactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Rai Cable Raja Cable TV Network RR Cable Neiwerk Rai Cable Network
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materials . . 6 7 P P 1 14
Purchases of servica and materials
- - - - 4 5 - -
Bad Debt Written off 0 - 1 - 0 - 1 -
Liabilities Taken over by - - 2 B 0 N 0 R
Provision for Doubtful Debts R 0 . 3 . 0 R 9
Outstanding at the end of year
() [t ()] 3 (11) iy 0 2
Transactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
Particulars SRD PROPERTIES VICTOR MEDBIIA IiTech Visual Channels KOLKATA MEDIA SERVICES
PRIVATE LIMITED PRIVATE LIMITED Private Limited PRIVATE LIMITED
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materials
30 22 - - 53 59 - -
Purchase of material & Services
30 16 28 43 30 37 - -
Bad Debt - - 0 - - - - 1
tandi 3
Ourts anding at the end of year 1 3 (18) G1) s 6 } [0)
Transactions with related partics. Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Kolkata Fintcrtnmmcnt MayFair Cable Link Satelite Broadband Victor Distributors
Services LLP Network
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Purchase of material & Services 95 121 4 5 13 12 7.67 }
Bad Debt Written off - 3.04 . - - - 11.80 -
Sales of service and materials 142 189 6 7 a1 19 ) 69
Provision for Doubtful Debis . - - - . - - 12
i h d
Qutstanding at the end of ycar s 1 o ) 0 1 3 28
Transactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Raja Cable IT Agency Maa vm:;;:i:}:: Seilite Maa Vaishnav Services
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materials 2 2 17 20 14 17 30 28
Provision for Doubtful Debts - . - 6 - 3 - 3
Bad Debt Wriiten off 0 . 0 - 1 - 0 -
Liabilities Taken over by . _ 4 - 6 _ - .
Qutstanding at the end of year
¢ Y @ © ® 5 a 3 © 3
Transactions with related partics. Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Maa Vaishanav Vision Shiva Vision Maa Laxmi Network Global Cable
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 Y 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materials 7 17 - ¢ 39 : 44 & 11
Provision for Doubtful Debis - 3 - [3 - 14 -
Bad Debt Written off 2 - 3 - 0 - 0 -
Liabilities Taken over by 2 - 5 - 8 - - -
Outstanding at the end of year 0 3 0 " 4
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Transactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Maa Laxmi Network Global Cable Maa Laxmi Network Global Cable
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY20-21 Iy 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materials 1 2 4 0 2 3 2 3
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 1 - 1 5 4
Bad Debt Written ofF 0 - 1 - 0 - 0 -
Liabilities Taken over by 0 - 0 - 2 - 1 -
Outstanding at the end of year
9 1 (0 1 [C)] 1 (0) 4
Transactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
Particulars Nice Network Puja Cable Baba Bhole Digital Mahavir Star Network
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materials 17 19 12 16 0 0 - -
Provision for Doubtful Debts - 10 - - - - - -
Bad Debt Written off - - 0 - 6 - 1 -
Liabilities Taken over by 4 - 11 - 1 - 1 -
OQutstanding at the end of year 1 1 1 17 () 7 _ 0
Rs in Lakhs

Transactions with related partics,

Maa Rajrappa Digital

Baba Bhole Digital Cable

Lovely Digital Cable

Puja Rani Digital Cable Network

Particulars Cahle Network Network Network
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 2122 FY 20-21 FY 2122 | FY20-2i Iy 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materiais 4 5 9 10 [ 7 8 9
Provision for Doubtful Debts - - - - - - - B
Bad Debt Written off’ 2 - 0 - 1 - 2 -
Liabilities Taken over by 1 - - - - - - -
Outstanding at the end of year ) 2 0 1 - ) 1 © 1
Transactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
iVi hbela Broadband Pvt
Particulars Kashi Vishwanath Cable Prakash Cable Network Digital Googly Pacenct Meghbela Broadband Py
Network Ltd
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 TY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Sales of service and materials 5 6 - - B _ _ _
Purchase of material & Services - - - - [ - - .
Provision for Doubtful Debis - - - - - - - -
Bad Debt Written off 2 - 0 - - - N N
Liabilities Taken over by - - 1 - - - - -
Borrowings - - - B - a8 -
0 ing at the end
utstanding a of year (0) 1 (0) . 0 ) 38) )
Transactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
. Hi Tech Film and . . Varicty Entertainment L
E Moople A tion Pvt Ltd
Earticulars Brondenst Academy Victor Electro Services Pvi Ltd oople Animation
FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21 FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Loans & Advances Given . - - - - 4,812 . .
Purchase of material & Services ) 138 4 3 } ; 107 i}
Sales of service and matertals . 138 . R 433 434 R .
Ouistanding at the end of year 3 0 _ 0 52031 5214 0 0
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Transactions with related parties. Rs in Lakhs
. Meghbela Cable &
Particul
artieutars Broadband Pvt, Ltd.
FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Expenses paid on behalf of 122 -
Purchase of material & Services 937 -
Sales of service and materials 341 -
Acquisition through Slump Sale 25 -
Borrowings 508 -
Liabilities Taken Qver 715 -
Outstanding at the end of year
(113) -
i.  Payments made to Key Managerial Personnel Rs in Lakhs
Particulars FY 21-22 FY 20-21
Surendra Kumar Agarwala 152 127
Suresh Kumar Sethiya 152 127
Atul Kumar Singh 57 54
Total Remuneration 361 308

66 During the year the company has acquired 7600 equity shares constituting 76% of Paid Up Equity Share Capital of Meghbela Infitel Broadband & Cable Private -
Limited (“Meghbela™), a Multi System Operator w.e.[, 8th of Junc,2021 at a total cash consideration of ¥ 0.76 Lakhs. On the said acquisition, Meghbela has become

subsidiary w.e.f 8th of June,2021.

Fair value of identifiable assets acquired, and linbilities assumed as on the date of acquisition is as below:
(Rts in Lakhs)

Trair value
Particulars as.o‘n'
acquisition
date
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 0.34
Deferred Tax Asset 0.01
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.11
Other Current Assets ) 0.38
Total Assets (A) 0.84
Liabilitics
Current liabilitics
Trade payables 143
Total Liabilities (B} 1.43
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired [C=A-B] (0.59}
(Rs in Lakhs)
Fair value
. ason
Larticulars acquisition
date
Fair value of identifiable net assets acquired [C=A-B] (0.59)
Putchase Consideration discharged in Cash (D) 0,76
Gain on Bargain Purchases (D-C) 1.35
NCI on the date of Acquistion [Calculated by the method of Proportianate Share in Net {0.14)
Assets(Book Value)]
Rsin Lakhs
Revenue of the Acquiree since the date of Acquistion till period end 2,377.80
Revenue of the Acquiree for the Financial Year 2021-22 2,377.80
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67 Additional Information as required under Schedule INF to the Companies Act, 2013 of Enterprises Consolidated

Net Assets, i.c., total assets Other Comprehensive .
minus total liabilities Profit/(Loss) for the year Income Total Comprehensive Income
Name of the Enterprise As % of As % of As % of As % of Total
Consolidated | Rs in Lakhs | Consolidated | Rsin Lakhs |Consolidated| RsinLakhs | Comprehensive Rs in Lakhs
Net Assets Profit or Loss oc1 Income
Parent
Indian Cable Net Co. Ltd, 93.53 44,629 207.19 1,537 99.99 23 203.98 1,560
Subsidiary
Siti Maurya Cable Net Pvt. Lt 4.94 2,356 (44.94) (333) 0.01 0 (43.59) (333)
Indinet Service Pvt Ltd (0.21) (160) 6.90 51 - - 6,70 51
Meghbela Infite] Cable & .
Broadband Pvt Ltd ©.59) {280) (37.69) {280) - - (36.56) (280)
Minority Interest in Subsidian 232 1,109 (3147} (233} 0.00 0 (30.52) (233)
47,714 741 23 765
Intra Group Elimination 1,911 {233) 0 {233)
TOTAL 45,803 974 23 997
GB The ratios for the year ended March, 31 2022 and March, 31 2021 are as follows :
. Numerator Denominator As at March,31 Variance in %
Particulars Remarks
2022 2021
(a) Current Ratio, Sub-total of Net Current 068 0.6% 2%
Current Assets  |Liabilities
(b) Debt-Equity Ratio, # Total Debt Share holder's 0.13 0.19 ~35% Repayment of Debts
Equity
(c) Debt Service Covernge Eamings available|Debt Service 2.62 076 243%| Reduction in principal payment of loans
|Ratio, ## for deblt service
(d) Return on Equity Ratio, PAT Average 2% 2% 3% -
Sharcholder's
cquily
(&) Inventory tumover ratio, Cost of Materials { Avemge 143 7.08 -80%%§ Consumption of Materials for Repairs and
Consumed Enventories Maintainance increased |
(f) Trade Receivables turnover  [Met Revenue from[Average Trade 10.53 8.09 30%; Reduction in o bal, of trade
1atio, Operztions Receivable receivables
(g} Trade payables tumaover Net Expenses for | Average Trade 3.9 325 20%
ratio, which credit Payable
purchase is
Jigenerated
(h) Net capital turnover ratio, | Total Income Waorking Capital NA| NA| NA
(i) Net profit ratio, PAT Total Income 2% 2% k]
(j) Return on Capital employed |EBIT Average Capital 4% 3% 22%i
Employed
(k) Retum on invesiment, ##
[nvestment in unquoted shares  {Net Gain Book Value of 19% - NA
Investmient
Reelised and Investment in ) % - NA
Unrealised Gain  {Mutual Fund
Investment in mutual funds from Investment
for the invested
period

(a) Net Current Lisbilities = Total Current Liabilities - Overdraft from Axis Bank
(b) Total Debt = total borrowings + total lease liabilities
(c) Eamings Available for Debit Service = PBT + Finance costs + Depreciaticn and amortisation expenses + Lass on Sale / Discard / Write ofT of Assets(net) + Net loss
() Net Revenue from Operations = Revenue from Operaticns + Revenue from Business Support Services :
() Net Expenses for which credit purchase is generated = Total Expenses - Finance Costs - Employee Benefits Expense - Cost of Materials Consumed - Cost/Purchase
(h) Working Capital = Sub Total of Current Assets - Sub Total of Current Lisbilitics. Net working capitel is negative.

{j} EBIT = Profit /(Loss) before tax - Interest on Finanial Liabilitics at Amortised Cost - Inferest expense ofi lease liability
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[ The Code on Social Security,2020 has been enacted by the Indian Parliament, which would impact the contributions by the company towards Provident fund and Gratuity,
The effective date from which the changes will be applicable and the comrespanding Rules, are yet to be notified. The Company will complets it's evaluation and will give
appropriate impact in the period in which the Code and the corresponding Rules become effective.

70 Disclosue of Struck off companics

The following table depicts the details of balances outstanding in respect of teansactions undertaken with struck-off companies under
section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013:

Rs in Lakhs
Name of struck off Company Naturc of | Balance as at | Balance as at | Relationship
Iransactions 3lst 31st with the
with struck- | March,2022 | March,2021 company
RAJV SOUQ PRIVATE LIMITED - - 0,08 |Customers
MACNEILL MEDIA PVT LTD - - 0.15 |Customers
M/S MELOS MEDIA PVT LTD - - 0.38 {Customers
4M WORLDWIDE MEDIA PRIVATE LIMITED - - 372.77 {Customers
TELEBRANDS (INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED - c- 5.69 [Customers
TAGANATH WEBTECH PRIVATE LIMITED - - 0.20 |{Customers

71 The Financial statements have been reviewed by the Audit Commitiee and approved by the board of dirgotors in their meeting held on 27 May, 2022.

2
A \&h W@ﬁ

72 Previous year’s figures have been regrouped and/or rearranged wherever necessary.
Notes to accounts referred in our report of even date.

For A.K. Bhalotia & Co.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. - 329475E}

AK Bhalotia Suresh Kumar Scthiya
Proprictor Whole Time Director
DIN-00349098

Membership No.-065860

»
Lax airn
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